
 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

2:00 P.M. WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2024 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Bruce Kuebler, President; Peggy Wiles, Vice President; Jack Curtis, Director; Laurie Lary, Director; Ed Lee, Director 

 

409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 
 

The meeting will be held in person and via Zoom by phone & video conference. The meeting will be 
recorded. To attend/listen to the meeting please call Toll Free US 1 (888) 788-0099 or 1 (877) 853-5247 

Meeting ID: 822 1803 9151 Password: 964370 Zoom Link: Zoom Link 

AGENDA 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (LIMIT 5 MIN / PER PERSON) 

4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 17, 2024 
B. PAYMENTS & CHECKS FOR JANUARY 
C. FINANCIALS FOR DECEMBER 

 
5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON WATER & DISTRICT STATUS 

6. CLARIFICATION OF BOARD APPROVAL TO PAY FOR UP TO 1/3 OF THE TRENCHING COST 
TO INSTALL SEPARATE SERVICE LINE AT 64 CALLE VISTA DEL MONTE 

 
7. ACCEPTANCE OF DWR GRANT AGREEMENT & NEXTGEN ENGINEERING AGREEMENT FOR 

CASITAS MUTUAL CONSOLIDATION WORK 
 
8. MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW  
 
9. AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE FOR PROPOSALS FOR ACCOUNTING SERVICES 
 
10. UPDATE TO 2023 WATER PROJECTS PRIORITIZATION 
 
11. RESOLUTION 2024-XXX – WaterSMART Water and Energy Efficiency Grant 
 
12. DISTRICT GOALS - UPDATE 
 
13. GENERAL MANAGER’S REVIEW – STAFF SURVEY QUESTIONS 
 
14. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

A. SPECIAL DISTRICT LEADERSHIP ACADEMY 
 

15. OLD & NEW BUSINESS 
A. WATER RATE AD-HOC COMMITTEE UPDATE 
B. CSDA AND SDRMA BOARD VACANCIES 

 

Right to be heard: Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item of interest to the public, 
which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. The request to be heard should be made immediately before the 
Board’s consideration of the item. No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of 54954.2 of the Government Code and except that members of a legislative body or 
its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under 
section 54954.3 of the Government Code. 



 
Agenda for November 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 

409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

16. CLOSED SESSION 
The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss the following items: 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Gov. Code § 54956.9) Name of case: Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper v. State Water Resources Control Board, et al., Los Angeles County Superior Court 
Case No. 19STCP01176 (formerly San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CPF-14-513875) 
case update. 
 

If you require special accommodation for attendance at or participation in this meeting, please notify our 
office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-3403 (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



Agenda for November 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

16. CLOSED SESSION
The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss the following items:

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION
(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Gov. Code § 54956.9) Name of case: Santa Barbara
Channelkeeper v. State Water Resources Control Board, et al., Los Angeles County Superior Court
Case No. 19STCP01176 (formerly San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CPF-14-513875)
case update.

If you require special accommodation for attendance at or participation in this meeting, please notify our 
office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-3403 (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

Agenda Packet - Page 1 of 111



Page 1 of 2 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 17, 2024 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - President Bruce Kuebler called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M and
a flag salute was held.

2. ROLL CALL- Director’s present were: Jack Curtis, Bruce Kuebler, Laurie Lary, Ed Lee, and Peggy
Wiles. Also present were: General Manager, Alma Quezada; and Office Manager, Emily Minteer;
District’s legal counsel, Stuart Nielson; Public Present: Marbe Manzano, Frances Fitting of Tico
Mutual Water Company, John Britton, CPA and Chelsi Castillo both from  Bartlett, Pringle, and Wolf,
and Jon Turner of Phoenix Civil Engineering.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA) – None.

4. CONSENT AGENDA:
A. MINUTES DECEMBER 20, 2023
B. PAYMENTS & CHECKS FOR DECEMBER
C. FINANCIALS FOR NOVEMBER

Ed Lee moved for approval of the consent agenda seconded by Laurie Lary and the motion carried 5-
0. 

5. DIRECTOR CURTIS’S PERSISTENT ABSENTEEISM: President Bruce Kuebler presented this item
regarding Director Curtis’s four absences last calendar year. Director Curtis requested the Board
excuse his December absence due to illness. Public Comment: None. Recommended Action:
Approve Director Curtis’s request to excuse his absence from the December meeting and approve his
continuing service on the Board. Laurie Lary moved for approval of the recommended action, seconded
by Ed Lee and the motion carried 4-0. Abstain Jack Curtis.

6. RESOULTION 2024-366: ACCEPTANCE OF TICO MUTUAL DOCUMENTS: A formal resolution is
required for the District to reflect the Board’s acceptance of easements with respect to the Tico
Consolidation. The resolution authorizes the General Manager to execute the necessary Certificate of
Acceptance required by the County to record the easements. Public Comment: None.
Recommended Action: Adopt resolution 2024-366 as presented. Peggy Wiles moved for approval of
the recommended action, seconded by Jack Curtis and the motion carried 5-0.

7. ANNUAL AUDIT 2022-23, BUDGET TRANSFER #6, & ALLOCATION TO RESERVES: Emily Minteer
presented the Fiscal Year 2023 Audit and introduced Bartlett, Pringle, and Wolf (BPW) accountants
John Britton, CPA, and Chelsi Castillo. John Britton discussed the particulars of the audit including
current fiscal year to last fiscal year comparisons with significant variances. VRWD financials were
found to be fairly and accurately stated. Discussion of the audit findings and recommendations indicated
that prior identified deficiencies would be addressed to ensure problems would be remediated. Staff
were directed to return the following month with a corrective plan of action to remediate existing
problems and prevent future recurrence during the annual audit process.  There was general board
discussion regarding the reserve accounts on whether to keep the same amounts, increase or
decrease. The Board decided to keep the reserve amounts as is with the goal of reaching $1 Million in
emergency reserves Public Comment: None. Recommended Action: 1) Review and comment on
the annual audit 2) Approve budget transfer #6 in the amount of $232,446 and 3) Approve the FY 22/23
allocation to reserves. Peggy Wiles moved for approval of the recommended action, seconded by Ed
Lee and the motion carried 5-0.

8. PRIORITIZATION OF 2023 WATER PROJECTS: The General Manager presented an updated list of
the 2023 Water Projects and their prioritization. Citing the State Revolving Fund disbursement process,
inflation, cash flow issues and debt service, the General Manager recommended prioritizing the projects
that improve the water system and bidding the projects as one bid package with staggered schedules
to mitigate cash flow concerns. There was general board discussion regarding the listed Capital
Improvement Projects and how to mitigate cash flow concerns. Public Comment: None.

ATTACHMENT 4A

Agenda Packet - Page 2 of 111



Page 2 of 2 

9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REVIEW- STAFF SURVEY: The General Manager presented a revised
Employee Survey on the General Manger’s performance with new questions. The board recommended
new questions and requested the survey to come back to next month’s meeting. Public Comment:
None.

10. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED: President Kuebler gave an oral report on the most
recent Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency meeting, and an  AWA water issues meeting. Director
Lary stated she attended a Ventura County Civic Alliance meeting.

11. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON WATER & DISTRICT STATUS: The static aquifer level at Well
#2 on January 1, 2024, was at elevation 539.4 feet and increase 2.0 feet since the first of last month.
The aquifer is currently 24.0 feet above the 35-year average for January 1st. Well #1 is pumping 1,039
GPM, down 6 GPM from last month. Well #7 is pumping 805 GPM, down 10 GPM from last month.
Well #2, #3, #4 & #6 were offline in December. Supplemental Casitas water was not purchased. Sales
dollars billed on December 31, 2023, amounted to $184,207, over budget by $1,881 for December.
Water sold in December 2023 amounted to 25,199 HCF, a decrease of 21.3% below the 32,019 HCF
sold in December 2013. On January 1, 2023, Lake Casitas level was at 72% of capacity at an elevation
of 539.62 feet. The lake has increased 1.1% since last month.

12. OLD & NEW BUSINESS:
A. DISTRICT CREDIT CARD ACCOUNT- The General Manager is in the process of opening a

new corporate credit card account for the District, the current credit card is a business card.
B. LCCR UPDATE- There was general board discussion regarding the revised lead and copper

rule and the District’s status on implementation.

13. CLOSED SESSION: Bruce Kuebler called the Board into executive session at 4:27 pm regarding legal
counsel’s annual performance.  Executive session was adjourned at 4:32 pm. Stuart Nielson reported
out of closed session no action was taken on this item.

Meeting adjourned at 4:32 pm. 

Attested: 

___________________________ 
Alma Quezada, Secretary 

ATTACHMENT 4A

Agenda Packet - Page 3 of 111



Date Vendor Description Amount

1/3/24 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 70.00$  

1/4/24 WEX Fuel 1,483.94$         

1/9/24 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 218.34$  

1/10/24 MECHANICS BANK Analysis Charges 635.03$  

1/12/24 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 6,708.40$         

1/12/24 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$  

1/12/24 MATILIJA WATER Office Water 24.24$  

1/16/24 CALPERS UAL- Classic 3,753.25$         

1/16/24 CALPERS PEPRA 2,644.56$         

1/16/24 CALPERS 457 2,345.83$         

1/16/24 CALPERS Classic 1,654.00$         

1/16/24 EDD State Tax Deposit 1,602.27$         

1/16/24 TIAA/EVERMORE Ricoh Office Printer 175.64$  

1/16/24 VANCO Bank Check Elimination 81.55$  

1/17/24 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 66.15$  

1/18/24 SCE Electric 14,478.24$      

1/18/24 ACWA Health Insurance 11,174.40$      

1/18/24 AT&T Mobile Phones 444.42$  

1/23/24 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 35.00$  

1/25/24 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 75.00$  

1/31/24 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$  

Total Online A/P Payments 47,864.26$      

Check Number Vendor Reason Amount

17997 Chase Addt'l stub for Check 17997 $0

Online A/P Payment Transactions - January 2024

Voided Checks

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 4 of 111



Page: 12/16/24 Ventura River Water District
11:17:18 AM

Check Dates: 1/1/2024 to 1/31/2024

AP Check Register (Current by Bank)

Status*Date AmountVendor ID Payee NameCheck No.

BANK ID:  RBOGEN - OPERATING ACCOUNT 10005

CHASE CARD SERVICES17996 P01/15/24 $3,468.02790

17997 V 1/15/2401/15/24 790

COUNTY OF VENTURA17998 P01/15/24 $1,750.001020

DATA PROSE17999 P01/15/24 $1,144.6110111

DIAL SECURITY18000 P01/15/24 $40.001268

DOCUMENT SYSTEMS18001 P01/15/24 $49.281269

FGL, INC.18002 P01/15/24 $333.001393

HERUM CRABTREE SUNTAG18003 P01/15/24 $915.6310134

IVR Technology Group18004 P01/15/24 $81.5710170

KELLY CLEANING & SUPPLIES18005 P01/15/24 $290.001730

LIGHT GABLER18006 P01/15/24 $35.0010154

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE18007 P01/15/24 $147.781950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC18008 P01/15/24 $340.002025

NELSON COMIS KETTLE & KINNEY,18009 P01/15/24 $2,047.5010204

OJAI TRUE VALUE18010 P01/15/24 $19.6910127

OJAI VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT18011 P01/15/24 $118.242400

PHOENIX CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC18012 P01/15/24 $2,895.002625

QUINN COMPANY18013 P01/15/24 $969.3410065

SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC SYSTEMS USA18014 P01/15/24 $1,396.503015

Ventura Energy18015 P01/15/24 $4,965.0010200

WATERSHED PROGRESSIVE18016 P01/15/24 $2,277.5010163

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES18018 P** 01/31/24 $69.1010197

DIAL SECURITY18019 P01/31/24 $502.001268

E J HARRISON & SONS, INC18020 P01/31/24 $283.801300

FGL, INC.18021 P01/31/24 $113.001393

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE18022 P01/31/24 $309.071950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC18023 P01/31/24 $544.902025

SHRED-IT18024 P01/31/24 $48.273080

WATERSHED PROGRESSIVE18025 P01/31/24 $911.2510163

MICKI KING18026 P01/31/24 $11.82MKING

BANK RBOGEN REGISTER TOTAL: $26,076.87

GRAND TOTAL : $26,076.87

* Check Status Types: "P" - Printed  ; "M" - Manual ; "V" - Void ( Void Date ); "A" - Application; "E" - EFT
** Denotes broken check sequence.

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 5 of 111



Ventura River Water District
Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)
For the period of  12/1/2023 Through 12/31/2023

Year To DateCurrent Period

VarianceVariance % %Actual Actual BudgetBudget

 Revenues

$182,621.79 $182,326.00 $295.79 %0.2 $1,427,934.21 $1,461,956.00 )$(34,021.79 %)(2.3WATER SALES

0.00 125.00 )(125.00 )(100.0 )(594.70 750.00 )(1,344.70 )(179.3SERVICE INSTALLATION

1,585.00 1,400.00 185.00 13.2 11,795.00 8,400.00 3,395.00 40.4DELINQUENT FEES

10,485.00 2,500.00 7,985.00 319.4 51,210.00 15,000.00 36,210.00 241.4CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES

%0.3%4.5Total Revenues $186,351.00 $4,238.51$1,486,106.00$1,490,344.51$8,340.79$194,691.79

 Operating Expenses

11,279.17 15,416.67 4,137.50 26.8 58,053.45 92,500.02 34,446.57 37.2WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES

10,476.67 10,500.00 23.33 0.2 62,860.02 63,000.00 139.98 0.2UVRGA PUMP FEE

63,077.03 68,666.67 5,589.64 8.1 372,941.67 412,000.02 39,058.35 9.5SALARIES

8,081.22 6,083.33 )(1,997.89 )(32.8 58,669.79 36,499.98 )(22,169.81 )(60.7PTO & SICK

6,204.81 5,333.33 )(871.48 )(16.3 34,369.12 31,999.98 )(2,369.14 )(7.4SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE

0.00 100.00 100.00 100.0 0.00 600.00 600.00 100.0STATE PAYROLL TAXES (SUI, ETT)

9,744.89 10,583.33 838.44 7.9 59,143.98 63,499.98 4,356.00 6.9PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

11,586.48 11,250.00 )(336.48 )(3.0 69,518.88 67,500.00 )(2,018.88 )(3.0GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE

1,508.17 1,750.00 241.83 13.8 12,080.27 10,500.00 )(1,580.27 )(15.1WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

6,825.25 6,916.67 91.42 1.3 40,951.50 41,500.02 548.52 1.3LIABILITY INSURANCE

2,345.00 2,000.00 )(345.00 )(17.3 9,459.00 12,000.00 2,541.00 21.2BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION

135.87 10,000.00 9,864.13 98.6 41,302.86 60,000.00 18,697.14 31.2CONTRACT LABOR

1,950.00 6,266.67 4,316.67 68.9 12,116.96 37,600.02 25,483.06 67.8PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft)

0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 100.0 6,378.22 12,000.00 5,621.78 46.8FUEL

465.84 833.33 367.49 44.1 1,193.74 4,999.98 3,806.24 76.1VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

4,112.79 5,833.33 1,720.54 29.5 25,291.65 34,999.98 9,708.33 27.7OFFICE MAINTENANCE

1,227.61 8,500.00 7,272.39 85.6 52,898.40 51,000.00 )(1,898.40 )(3.7FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

3,464.10 6,500.00 3,035.90 46.7 61,617.39 39,000.00 )(22,617.39 )(58.0METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE

13,398.19 13,333.33 )(64.86 )(0.5 43,132.25 79,999.98 36,867.73 46.1WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

1,040.00 2,916.67 1,876.67 64.3 7,572.50 17,500.02 9,927.52 56.7DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL

0.00 29,166.67 29,166.67 100.0 0.00 175,000.02 175,000.02 100.0DEPRECIATION

%23.4%29.9Total Operating Expenses $223,950.00 $314,148.35$1,343,700.00$1,029,551.65$67,026.91$156,923.09

 General & Administrative Expenses

15,488.95 12,833.33 )(2,655.62 )(20.7 66,004.93 76,999.98 10,995.05 14.3UTILITIES

1,149.82 1,250.00 100.18 8.0 7,249.18 7,500.00 250.82 3.3TELEPHONE & INTERNET

164.75 166.67 1.92 1.2 988.50 1,000.02 11.52 1.2LAFCO FEES

80.00 1,333.33 1,253.33 94.0 4,177.67 7,999.98 3,822.31 47.8BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS

1,791.25 2,083.33 292.08 14.0 11,008.16 12,499.98 1,491.82 11.9MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS

579.40 1,158.33 578.93 50.0 5,313.50 6,949.98 1,636.48 23.5PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV

33.00 416.67 383.67 92.1 166.84 2,500.02 2,333.18 93.3DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION

289.00 416.67 127.67 30.6 1,734.00 2,500.02 766.02 30.6SECURITY

855.08 1,083.33 228.25 21.1 5,456.38 6,499.98 1,043.60 16.1POSTAGE

1,817.68 1,750.00 )(67.68 )(3.9 9,646.51 10,500.00 853.49 8.1OFFICE SUPPLIES

962.84 4,166.67 3,203.83 76.9 15,028.40 25,000.02 9,971.62 39.9VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 6 of 111



Ventura River Water District
Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)
For the period of  12/1/2023 Through 12/31/2023

Year To DateCurrent Period

VarianceVariance % %Actual Actual BudgetBudget

0.00 333.33 333.33 100.0 0.00 1,999.98 1,999.98 100.0BAD DEBT EXPENSE

2,162.50 8,333.33 6,170.83 74.0 28,181.25 49,999.98 21,818.73 43.6CONSERVATION

%26.9%28.2Total General & Administrative Expenses $35,324.99 $56,994.62$211,949.94$154,955.32$9,950.72$25,374.27

%23.9Total Expenses $182,297.36 $76,977.63 %29.7$259,274.99 $1,184,506.97 $1,555,649.94 $371,142.97

Income (Loss) from Operations $12,394.43 )$(72,923.99 $85,318.42 %117.0 %539.8$375,381.48)$(69,543.94$305,837.54

 Other Income (Expense)

$31,103.93 $5,000.00 $26,103.93 %522.1 $31,571.81 $30,000.00 $1,571.81 %5.2PROPERTY TAXES

5,341.84 666.67 4,675.17 701.3 10,103.07 4,000.02 6,103.05 152.6INTEREST INCOME

7,276.12 0.00 7,276.12 0.0 28,977.08 15,000.00 13,977.08 93.2OTHER REVENUE

0.00 8,333.33 )(8,333.33 )(100.0 0.00 49,999.98 )(49,999.98 )(100.0GRANT REVENUE

%)(28.6%212.3Total Other Income (Expense) $14,000.00 )$(28,348.04$99,000.00$70,651.96$29,721.89$43,721.89

%1178.1Income Before Taxes $56,116.32 $115,040.31 %195.2)$(58,923.99 $376,489.50 $29,456.06 $347,033.44

$56,116.32Net Income (Loss) $115,040.31 %195.2 $29,456.06 $347,033.44$376,489.50 %1178.1)$(58,923.99

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 7 of 111



As of 12/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District2/16/24
11:15:55 AM

Assets

 Current Assets

FUNDS IN COUNTY TREASURY $774,381.54

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 537,071.22

PETTY CASH 580.03

SECURITY DEPOSIT CHECKING 11,128.74

RABO6073 212,606.13

PRO-EQUITIES 932,883.21

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 231,320.89

TREASURY INTEREST RECEIVABLE 215.35

CMWD PENALTY RECEIVABLE 76.56

GRANTS RECEIVABLE )(3,143.75

PREPAID SECURITY MONITORING & MAINT 344.00

PREPAID INSURANCE 40,698.80

PREPAID COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 15,809.56

PREPAID OTHER 94,699.53

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 162,672.00

Total Current Assets A $3,011,343.81

 Property, Plant & Equipment

WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT $2,808,236.05

SCADA SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 59,597.10

DISTRICT 4 AND DISTRICT 7 118,245.00

WELLS 1,852,532.96

TANKS 1,412,845.83

PUMPS 277,620.38

METERS 78,491.94

TRUCKS 297,395.76

OFFICE AND SHOP EQUIPMENT 229,857.10

BUILDINGS 1,802,062.45

LAND,WATER & RIGHTS OF WAY 227,580.50

SCADA SYSTEM 72,538.66

BALDWIN EROSION PROTECTION 68,324.24

PIPELINES 2,382,412.00

RE-PLUMB ENCINO & THOMAS PRV VAULTS 33,783.75

WELL#3 & WELL#2 PUMP & PANEL REPLACEMENT 306,931.30

N. BALDWIN TANK REPAIR 11,204.91

SANTA ANA BLVD FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 21,700.50

TICO MUTUAL PROJECT 73,533.18

SRF WATER MAIN PROJECTS 424,566.69

SRF CONSTRUCTION POTHOLING 70,308.58

SRF SOLAR PROJECTS 105,908.82

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION )(4,913,955.31

CASITAS SPRINGS EMERGENCY FIRE FLOW PUMP 16,939.50

GAIN/LOSS ON ASSET DISPOSAL 18,792.96

Total Property, Plant & Equipment A 7,857,454.85

Total Assets $10,868,798.66
A

Liabilities and Equity

 Current Liabilities

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $5,952.95

PTO PAYABLE 83,490.15

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS PAYABLE 3,471.25

SECURITY DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,337.48

DEPOSIT PAYABL-SVC INSTALL/HYDRANT METER 250.00

REFUNDS PAYABLE 879.75

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 8 of 111



As of 12/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District2/16/24
11:15:55 AM

TICO MUTUAL TRUST 51,832.53

FLIEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT 143.77

DEPENDENT CARE 3,330.82

NET PENSION LIABILITY 203,443.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS 213,131.00

Total Current Liabilities A $572,262.70

Total Liabilities $572,262.70
A

 Equity

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $7,786,425.00

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 2,133,621.46

Current Year Profit/Loss A 376,489.50

Total Equity 10,296,535.96A

Total Liabilities and Equity $10,868,798.66

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 9 of 111



Water System Improvements
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/(Over) Description/Status

13014 Well #6 Retaining Wall 30,000.00$    30,000.00$     Retaining wall, gravel pad at Well #6
13040 Mixing Valve South Alto Tank 25,000.00$    25,000.00$     Mixing valve for South Alto Tank to prevent thermostratification
13061 Well #2 & 3 Pump & Pannel Replacement 300,435.00$     1,268.50$    299,166.50$     Pump & Panel Replacement ct'd
13105 Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 41,000$    1,113.75$    39,886.25$     Finish pump design and specs, contract award to Phoenix Civil Engineering
13094 Tico Mutual Annexation Project 20,000$    7,110.00$    12,890.00$     LAFCo Application, Design Engineering, SRF Coordination
13098 SRF Water Main Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr, Easemts 250,000$    15,268.25$    234,731.75$     Awarded to Phoenix = $658,000 (13098 & 13099), Potholing & Easements
13100 SRF Solar Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr 31,000$    463.75$    30,536.25$     Awarded to Phoenix = $114,227, Ventura Energy Baldwin & Parker Site Interconnection Agreement
13010 Hydrant & Valve Replacement Project 205,000$    205,000.00$     To be completed Fall 2023 pending funding
13110 SCADA Communication Alarm & Cla-Val for Emergency backfill of Parker 25,000$    25,000.00$     Development of Communciation failure alarm and intergration of 4" Cla-Val at Parker Site

Total 927,435$    25,224$    902,211$     

Auto Equipment

Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

N/A
Shop Equipment

Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

N/A
Office Equipment

Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

N/A
Summary 927,435.00$     25,224.25$    902,210.75$     

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

Status of Capital Improvement Projects - FYE 2024

12/31/2023

ATTACHMENT 4C

Agenda Packet - Page 10 of 111



 

 

DATE:  February 21, 2024 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., General Manager 

SUBJECT: WATER AND DISTRICT STATUS 

WELLS & PRODUCTION 

The static aquifer level at Well #2 on February 1, 2024, was at elevation 539.2.00 feet; and 
decreased 0.2 feet since the first of last month. The aquifer is 23.8 feet above the 35-year average 
for February 1st.  

Well #1 is pumping 984 GPM, up 55 GPM from last month. Well #7 is pumping 767 GPM, up 38 
GPM from last month, Wells #2, #3, #4 and #6 were off-line in January. 

USAGE 

Sales dollars billed on January 31, 2023, amounted to $135,110 ($6,399) under budget. Last 
year we billed $101,294 during the same period. Water sold in January 2023 amounted to 19,874 
HCF; an increase of 6% above the 18,805 HCF budgeted for the fiscal year. 

Charts are enclosed to depict the ground water status and water usage. On February 1, 2024, 
Lake Casitas level was at 72.3% of full capacity at elevation 540.71, with storage of 173,661 AF. 
The lake increased 0.3%, 1.09 feet and 2,399 AF since last month.  

ET adjustment:  The ET was decreased by 12% for the January 31st water bill because ET was 
slightly below the 5-year average for the period December 15th to January 15th. This decreases 
the irrigation portion of the customer’s monthly water budget.  

ACTIVITIES 

Staff Acknowledgements 
Mark Albertsen will celebrate 13 years with the District on January 31st. The District is grateful for 
his many years of dedication and service for the betterment of the District. 
 
Operations & Maintenance 
 On January 18, 2024, a hydrant was struck on Rice Road. The hydrant was repaired and 

a claim in the amount of $17,125 is pending with the vehicle owner’s insurance. 
 On January 25, 2024, the Baldwin tank was inspected by Superior Tank to evaluate the 

life expectancy and needed repairs. The inspection found the tank in good condition with 
some items that need repair to extend the life of the tank another 30 years. Recommended 
repairs with cathodic protection are estimated at $80,958. 

 The District purchased an owl barn to attract local raptor species (barn owls, American 
kestrels and western screech owls) to control rodents on District property. This 
environmentally conscious approach is anticipated to mitigate damage to District property 
and vehicles. 

Agenda Packet - Page 11 of 111



Water & District Update 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 Annual operating permits for the emergency generators were renewed. 
 The District migrated to the Microsoft Office 365 product lineup, saving the District $1,200 

annually. 
 
Regulatory 
 Tico Consolidation:  

o The District secured a $3.2 Million grant funding agreement from the State for the 
Tico Consolidation. 

o The District will submit for immediate reimbursement of $69,658.84 ($43,613.84 is 
owed to Tico).  

o The LAFCo Hearing is scheduled for February 21, 2024. 
 
 
Customer Log 
One customer complaint was logged in February. 
 
 

 
 

CUSTOMER COMPLAINT LOG

VR
W

D
 

C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 S
ID

E

01/18/24 Rice Rd x x Fire hydrant hit by car

Vehicle collision with hydrant on Rice Rd. Shut 
down main transmission line and switched to 
Casitas on Burnham Rd & Rice Rd. Changed 
hydrant valve and turned our water back on. 
Installed a new fire hydrant and bury, poured 
concrete thrust block and backfilled.

 OTHER / DESCRIPTION FINDINGS COMMENTSSTREET

PR
ES

SU
R

E 
H

IG
H

/L
O

W

O
U

TA
G

E

IL
LN

ES
S

Leak

SE
R

VI
C

E 
or

 M
ET

ER

M
A

IN
 - 

SY
ST

EM

W
O

R
M

S 
/ O

R
G

A
N

IS
M

S

DATE

TA
ST

E 
&

 O
D

O
R

C
O

LO
R

TU
R

B
ID

IT
Y

Agenda Packet - Page 12 of 111



50.0

25.9

31.4

20.7

30.1

53.0

13.3
12.4

29.3

15.4
17.1

6.9

3.6

27.1

31.9

37.8

14.2

46.6

28.2

19.0

45.5

9.8

22.2

29.5

13.3

17.7

26.8

34.4

23.8

8.8

25.8

16.1

32.0

17.5

13.6

4.2

13.8

5.0

16.8

23.0

14.9

31.3

11.1

18.4
16.9

47.7

11.0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

1
97

8
1

97
9

1
98

0
1

98
1

1
98

2
1

98
3

1
98

4
1

98
5

1
98

6
1

98
7

1
98

8
1

98
9

1
99

0
1

99
1

1
99

2
1

99
3

1
99

4
1

99
5

1
99

6
1

99
7

1
99

8
1

99
9

2
00

0
2

00
1

2
00

2
2

00
3

2
00

4
2

00
5

2
00

6
2

00
7

2
00

8
2

00
9

2
01

0
2

01
1

2
01

2
2

01
3

2
01

4
2

01
5

2
01

6
2

01
7

2
01

8
2

01
9

2
02

0
2

02
1

2
02

2
2

02
3

2
02

4

In
ch

es
 o

f 
R

ai
n

Rain Year

Average = 22.35" 

Historic Annual Rainfall - At VRWD Office
February 1, 2024

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 13 of 111



28.9

11.6

8.6 9.1
10.3

12.0

28.0

11.2

27.3

17.0

6.1

16.9

47.7

11.0

544.0

514.8

553.0

525.5

535.9

530.1

494.6

515.5

479.5

507.9

481.7

503.8

472.2

491.8

469.1

545

491.1

533.8

522

533.3

517.4

526.4

491.5

530.0

498.7

555.4

539.2

72 %

86 %

81 %

60%

35.1%

43.8%

30.4%

45.0%

41.2%

44.9%

32.3%

35.0%

29.8%

72.3%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

570

Ju
n
e‐
1
0

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
0

Ju
n
e‐
1
1

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
1

Ju
n
e‐
1
2

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
2

Ju
n
e‐
1
3

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
3

Ju
n
e‐
1
4

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
4

Ju
n
e‐
1
5

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
5

Ju
n
e‐
1
6

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
6

Ju
n
e‐
1
7

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
7

Ju
n
e‐
1
8

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
8

Ju
n
e‐
1
9

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
9

Ju
n
e‐
2
0

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
0

Ju
n
e‐
2
1

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
1

Ju
n
e‐
2
2

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
2

Ju
n
e‐
2
3

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
3

Ju
n
e‐
2
4

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
4

R
ai
n
 ‐
In
ch
e
s

El
ev
at
io
n
 A
b
o
ve
 S
ea

 L
ev
el

Chart 9VENTURA RIVER UPPER BASIN & LAKE CASITAS LEVELS 
February 1, 2024       

hhihhihhihhi

Lake Casitas Level

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

Probable Limit of Aquifer

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

hhi

Upper Ventura River 
Groundwater Level

Aquifer Full

74.1 % on 6/21/23

3/22/2023

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 14 of 111



539.4
539.2

555.4

537.4

-119

-99

-79

-59

-39

-19

445

465

485

505

525

545

565
Ja

n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

t

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

D
ep

th
 [

ft
],

 b
gs

E
le

va
tio

n 
[f

t]
, a

m
sl

Water Level Hydrograph

Aquifer Level from VRWD Well #2, 1st Day of Each Month

Sounding Pipe Elevation = 565.11

2024

35‐Yr Average

Aquifer Full at 551.7 feet

Start Nitrate Blending Elev 472

2016

Bottom of Aquifer Elev 450

2021

2022

CHART 2

2023

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 15 of 111



0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

U
n
it
s 
o
f W

at
e
r,
 H
C
F

VRWD TOTAL SYSTEM DEMANDS 

2013 2022 2023 2024

2024

Chart 3

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 16 of 111



0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Water Usage
FY 2023/2024

Budgeted Water Usage Actual Water Usage

Usage is 3% under Budget for the Year.

Chart 8B

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 17 of 111



$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Water Revenues
FY 2023/2024

Budgeted Water Revenue Year to date Actual Water Revenue Year to date

Revenue is 3% under Budget for the Year.

Chart 8A

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 18 of 111



 

DATE: February 21, 2024  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: CLARIFICATION OF BOARD APPROVAL TO PAY FOR UP TO 1/3 OF 
THE TRENCHING COST TO INSTALL A SEPARATE SERVICE LINE AT 
64 CALLE VISTA DEL MONTE 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The General Manager recommends that the Board clarify the scope of "trenching costs" 
eligible for the District's one-third payment commitment. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The owner of 64 Calle Vista Del Monte desires to construct an Additional Dwelling Unit 
(ADU).  Both 64 and 48 Calle Vista Del Monte are currently served by a single 1-inch 
copper service line that is approximately 75 years old. Three homes cannot be adequately 
served by the existing 1-inch copper service line, and a new service line is required for 
the new, detached accessory dwelling unit (ADU) per the District’s Rules & Regulations 
for Water Service and Government Code 65852.2.  

On June 21, 2023, the Board heard this item and voted 3 to 1 to require a new water 
service to be paid by the owner of 64 Calle Vista Del Monte if the owner wishes to 
construct an additional detached ADU on the property.   

After further discussions with the property owner, this item was brought before the board 
again on July 19, 2023, and the property owner requested that the District cover 50% of 
the installation costs for the new service line. The Board voted 3 to 1 to contribute up to 
1/3 of the trenching cost to install a separate water service. 
 
The District has committed to funding one-third of the trenching cost associated with a 
new 1.5” service line installation for 64 Calle Vista del Monte as it was deemed 
advantageous for the District to replace the existing 75-year-old service main with an 
undetermined useful life. However, there appears to be some ambiguity regarding what 
specific costs are included, with the potential for a broader range of costs to be included 
under the District's financial responsibility. 
 
Replacement of the service line will also require the District to install a new service line 
to the adjacent property to separate the service lines. It’s important to note that when the 
water main is replaced in the future, all service lines will again be replaced.  
 
Issue at Hand: 
The customer believes that the District's commitment extends beyond trenching costs to 
other related service line installation expenses. Without a clear definition of which specific 

Agenda Packet - Page 19 of 111



 
64 Calle Vista del Monte 
Page 2 of 2 
 

components fall under the term "trenching cost," there is room for misunderstanding and, 
consequently, unintended financial implications for the District. 
 
Clarification Needed: 
In light of the above, staff requests that the Board of Directors provide explicit guidance 
on which components of a service line installation are encompassed within the one-third 
cost that the District has agreed to pay. This clarification will ensure consistent and 
transparent application of our policies and prevent any potential misinterpretation in the 
future. 
 
Gift of Public Funds Consideration: 
Furthermore, it is crucial to address whether extending the District's financial 
responsibility beyond the agreed-upon trenching costs could be construed as a "gift of 
public funds." According to Article XVI, Section 6 of the California Constitution, the use of 
public funds to benefit individual or corporate interests, without a demonstrable public 
purpose, is prohibited. Therefore, it is essential to establish a clear boundary to ensure 
that the District's contributions to service line installations do not violate this constitutional 
provision. 
 
Action Required: 
To resolve these issues, staff respectfully requests that the Board of Directors define 
explicitly the scope of "trenching costs" eligible for the District's one-third payment 
commitment. Clarification will allow the District to maintain the integrity of our fiscal 
responsibilities and uphold public trust. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
If the District contributes 1/3 of the cost of the trenching, the District’s cost would be 
approximately $720 (trenching) plus $1,630 (adjacent service line) for total of $2,346.  
 
If the cost of mobilization, traffic control, saw cutting pavement, removal of spoils, slurry 
backfilling and paving are included, the cost increases to approximately $5,260 ($3,860 
1/3 all costs and $1,400 materials for adjacent home).  
 
The cost-of-service line installations are funded from account #60022-Water System 
Maintenance of which ~ $44,000 remains through the end of January. 
 
When the water main is replaced in the future, the service lines will again be replaced. 
 
Attachment(s): 
 A – Gruber Estimates and Material Invoices 

Agenda Packet - Page 20 of 111



Marisa and Jason GruberMarisa and Jason Gruber
Gruber GrGruber Grading and Aading and Agg Lic #: 1087839

326 Larmier Ave

Oak View CA

93022

805.794.9950

grubergrading@gmail.com

ESTIMAESTIMATETE

EST0036

DDAATETE

Dec 5, 2023

TTOOTTALAL

USD $11,580.00

TTOO

VVenturentura Riva River Wer Watater Districter District

409 Old Baldwin Rd.

Ojai, CA

93023

805-646-3403

mark@venturariverwd.com

DESCRIPTIONDESCRIPTION RARATETE QQTYTY AMOUNTAMOUNT

NeNew watw water serer servvice and eice and existing serxisting servvice rice replacement at 64 Calle Vista Deleplacement at 64 Calle Vista Del
MontMontee
-Mobilize equipment to job
-Setup traffic control
-Saw cut and "T" patch grind street per County of Ventura specs
-Dig up and expose water main
-Hot tape water main for new 1 1/2" water service
-Dig trench across street for new 1 1/2" and to replace existing 1" service
-Haul off old asphalt and trench spoils
-Install new 1 1/2" and 1" service
-Sand over new water services and compact
-Slurry backfill trench per County of Ventura specs
-Pave street back to match existing pavement per County of Ventura
specs

$11,580.00 1 $11,580.00

All parAll partts pers pertaining ttaining to neo new watw water serer servvices tices to be pro be proovvided bided by Vy Venturenturaa
RivRiver Wer Watater Districter District
-1 1/2" taping saddle
-1 1/2"Corp
-1 1/2" copper pipe
-1" copper pipe
-Angle meter stops
-Meters with meter boxes

$0.00 1 $0.00

TTOOTTALAL USD $11,580.00

Page 1 of 3

ATTACHMENT 6A

Agenda Packet - Page 21 of 111



STANDARD EXCLUSIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, AND REMARKS:
1        Excludes fees, permits, engineering, soils testing, survey-staking.
2        Reliable source of construction water, and associated costs, by others.
3        This price does not include de-watering or associated engineering, if ground water is found

de-watering efforts and all associated equipment will be billed at a Time & Material basis
4        SWPPP plan, and permitting by others.
5        This proposal is for the total of all items listed above; individual items may not be removed from

the scope of work without permission from Gruber Grading and Ag.
6        Includes spoils hauloff.
7        Excludes jobsite fencing or security.
8        Excludes dust control when Gruber Grading and Ag is off site.
9        Jobsite trash container must be provided for the use of Gruber Grading and Ag
10        Excludes slurry backfill, unless noted above.
11        Excludes any asbestos, hazardous materials, or contaminated soil abatement or remediation.
12        Excludes any archeological monitoring; costs due to delayed work progress as a result of

monitoring to be invoiced on a "Time and Materials" basis.
13        Includes asphalt paving.
14        Includes prevailing wage rates.

Payment Schedule:
Progress payments by percent completion per Gruber Grading and Ag'sSchedule will billed on or around the
1st and the 15th of each Month and payment is due upon receipt.

Unforeseen Obstructions: Though it is not anticipated, unknown underground obstructions may be
encountered during the excavation process. Examples of these may be excessive ground water, rock, septic
tanks, gasoline storage tanks, Indian artifacts, concrete caverns, contaminated soil or abandoned well
casings, rock excavation that includes unknown materials and obstructions encountered which cannot be
dislodged and excavated with modern track-mounted heavy-duty excavation equipment; without drilling,
blasting, ripping or jack hammering. Should any of these or other types of obstructions be encountered, work
will cease immediately and the owner will be notified. Work on these obstructions will then proceed on a time
and material basis.

Failure to Pay:
Subcontractor shall have the right to stop work if any payment is not  made when due to Subcontractor under
this
Agreement. Subcontractor may keep the job idle until all payments due are received. Failure to make
payment, within (30) days of due date, is a material breach of this Agreement and shall entitle Subcontractor
to cease any further work. Subcontractor may treat such material breach as justifiable means to refuse to
complete the balance of contract work. Invoices are due 30 days from completion. Past due invoices will be
charged interest at the maximum rate allowed by state law.

Change Orders
Any alterations or deviation from the above specifications involving extra cost of material or labor will only be
executed on written orders for same, and will become an extra charge over the sum mentioned in this
contract. All agreements must be in writing.
Respectfully submitted,
Jason Gruber                                Date        12/5/2023

The proposal may be withdrawn if not accepted within 15 days.
If Gruber Grading and Ag is required to commence any legal action to recover losses under this agreement or
required to employ an attorney for any enforcement of any of its rights herein, customer agrees to pay for
responsible attorney fees and costs incurred thereby.

Page 2 of 3

ATTACHMENT 6A

Agenda Packet - Page 22 of 111



Authorized Signature                                         Date

Print Name

Page 3 of 3

ATTACHMENT 6A

Agenda Packet - Page 23 of 111



ATTACHMENT 6A

lJ 
Famcon Pipe & Supply, Inc 
200 Lambert St 
OXNARD, CA 93036 
Phone 805-485-4350 
Fax 805-485-3070 

BILL TO: SHIP TO: 

II I Ill I 111111111111111111111111 
Invoice 

INVOICE DATE INVOICE NUMBER 

01/18/2024 S100119176.001 

PAGE NO. 
REMIT TO: 
Famcon Pipe & Supply, Inc 
200 Lambert St 1 of 1 OXNARD, CA 93036 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DIST. 
409 OLD BALDWIN ROAD 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DIST. 
409 OLD BALDWIN ROAD 

OJAI, CA 93023 OJAI, CA 93023 

CUSTOMER NUMBER CUSTOMER PO NUMBER JOB NAME / RELEASE NUMBER 

449 64 calle vista del monte 

WRITER SHIP VIA TERMS 

Shane McBride OT OUR TRUCK Net 30 Days 

ORDER QTY SHIP QTY DESCRIPTION 

60ft 60ft 99150 PIPE, 1 1/2" X 20' TYPE K 

2ea 
1ea 

2ea 

2ea 

1ea 

1ea 

1ea 

2ea 

2ea 

2ea 

SOFT CU 

2ea B90100D 90, BRASS 1" NL DOMESTIC 
1ea BT150D TEE.BRASS 1 1/2" NL DOMESTIC 
2ea BB150100D 1-1/2" x 1" NL STD BRASS 

HEX BUSHING DOMESTIC 

2ea B10012 NIPPLE 1" X 12" BRASS 

1ea FB11006NL BALL CORP, IP X CTS P.J. 

1-1/2" FB 1100-6-NL (1935150) 
1ea IP97904150 SADDLE, 4 X 1 1/2" IP 

J979, FORD #202B-540-IP6 

1ea L4466NL 1-1/2" FORD L44-66-NL, CTS 

PACK JOINT 90 

2ea KV63342WNL ANG.STP,IPS P.J. X 
MTR.NUT 1"X 3/4" KV63-342W-NL 

2ea C4466NL COUPLING, CTS X CTS P.J. 

1-1/2" C44-66-NL (2609150) 

2ea B36SB BOX, METER J+R #3-1/2 BODY 

ONLY(= #36) 10-1/2"x17" 

Printed Nc:lme 

SALESPERSON 

Shane McBride 

SHIP DATE ORDER DATE 

01/18/2024 01/12/2024 

UNIT PRICE EXT PRICE 

18.080/ft 1084.80 

19.750/ea 39.50 
63.500/ea 63.50 
32.750/ea 65.50 

23.750/ea 47.50 

186.000/ea 186.00 

147.000/en ~47.00 

128.250/ea 128.25 

66.000/ea 132.00 

94.000/ea 188.00 

22.000/ea 44.00 

.___ ___ _,__ ___ .,__ __________________ --t-------;-----·-- ---- ...... .. 

Invoice is due by 02/17/2024 Subtotal 

Past Due invoices may be subject to 1.50% late charge. S&H Charges 0.00 1 
Thank you for your business. If this invoice is paid oy credit card, there 
will be a 3% fee. 

Printed By: IRMAC on 1/20/2024 1 :58:22 AM PST 

Tax 164 '1·1 I ------- ,. __ .,,..,." .... ~,.,. ... - .. .,.-~--~" ... ··{ 
Payments 1) !Ji) i 

I 

Amount Due 2• 'iO(' ·I 'l ' 
,....._ _____ .._ __ , , .. <N. •:'.' J 

Agenda Packet - Page 24 of 111



ATTACHMENT 6A

lJ 
Famcon Pipe & Supply, Inc 
200 Lambert St 
OXNARD, CA 93036 
Phone 805-485-4350 
Fax 805-485-3070 

BILL TO: 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DIST. 
409 OLD BALDWIN ROAD 
OJAI, CA 93023 

1111111111111111 I I IIH 111111 IH 
Invoice --

INVOICE DATE INVOICE NUMBER 

01/18/2024 S100119176.002' 

PAGE NO. 
REMIT TO: 
Famcon Pipe & Supply, Inc 
200 Lambert St 
OXNARD, CA 93036 

SHIP TO: 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DIST. 
409 OLD BALDWIN ROAD 
OJAI, CA 93023 

1 of 1 

CUSTOMER NUMBER CUSTOMER PO NUMBER JOB NAME/ RELEASE NUMBER SALESPERSON 

449 64 calle vista del monte Shane McBride 

WRITER SHIP VIA TERMS SHIP DATE ORDER DATE •• I 

Shane McBride OT OUR TRUCK Net 30 Days 01/18/2024 01/i2/2024 

ORDER QTY SHIP QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXT PHICf 
l------+-----+---------------------+------l'--------.. --

2ea 2ea B13332WHB34SNL VALVE.BALL SWIV.X 96.500/ea 

FIP 3/4" B13-332W-HB34S-NL,W/HANDLE 

( 1908) (8) **** 

Prir.ted Nc;1me 

Invoice is due by 02/17/2024 

Past Due invoices may be subject to 1.50% late charge. 
Thank you for your business. If this invoice is paid 6y credit card, there 
will be a 3% fee. 

Printed By: IRMAC on 1/20/2024 1 :58:22 AM PST 

Subtotal 

S&H Charges 

Tax 

Payments 

Amount Due 

193.00 

·]93.00 I 

0.00 

13.99 
·----· 

0.00 

206.99 

Agenda Packet - Page 25 of 111



Invoice

Famcon Pipe & Supply, Inc
200 Lambert St
OXNARD, CA 93036
Phone 805-485-4350
Fax 805-485-3070

CUSTOMER NUMBER CUSTOMER PO NUMBER JOB NAME / RELEASE NUMBER

WRITER SHIP VIA SHIP DATE ORDER DATE

OT OUR TRUCK 01/29/2024Shane McBride

449 64 calle vista del monte

ORDER QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXT PRICE

BILL TO:

VENTURA RIVER WATER DIST.
409 OLD BALDWIN ROAD
OJAI, CA 93023

SHIP TO:

VENTURA RIVER WATER DIST.
409 OLD BALDWIN ROAD
OJAI, CA 93023

01/12/2024

SHIP QTY

INVOICE DATE

PAGE NO.

INVOICE NUMBER

S100119176.00401/29/2024

1 of 1

REMIT TO:
Famcon Pipe & Supply, Inc
200 Lambert St
OXNARD, CA 93036

TERMS

Net 30 Days

SALESPERSON

Shane McBride

B36 J&R 3-1/2 METER BOX 1PC COVER2ea 2ea 15.000/ea 30.00
MARKED "WATER" 10-1/2 X 17
**** 2 COVERS IN 03I9 **** JP
1/29/24

Past Due invoices may be subject to 1.50% late charge.
Thank you for your business.  If this invoice is paid by credit card, there
will be a 3% fee.

Printed By: IRMAC on 1/30/2024 7:03:14 PM PST

Subtotal 30.00

S&H Charges 0.00

Tax 2.18

Payments 0.00

Amount Due 32.18

Invoice is due by 02/28/2024

ATTACHMENT 6A() 1111111111111111 I I IIII II I I II Ill 

~ Signature 
_11~ 1 zC 

Date -

Prini_ed Narrte * T t-. P-m_o; 

Agenda Packet - Page 26 of 111



DATE: February 21, 2024 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF DWR GRANT AGREEMENT & NEXTGEN 
ENGINEERING AGREEMENT FOR CASITAS MUTUAL CONSOLIDATION 
WORK 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Approve the DWR Grant Agreement to accept a grant for pipeline work that supports
the consolidation efforts, and

2. Authorize the Board President and General Manager to sign the Consulting Services
Agreement with NextGen Engineering and Task Order #1 for providing engineering
support toward the Casitas Mutual consolidation.

BACKGROUND 

Casitas Mutual Water Company (Casitas Mutual) serves approximately 83 customers on the 
west side of Hwy 33 in Casitas Springs.  

Casitas Mutual has obtained a $980,000 grant from the California Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) to replace some of their pipes and meters. Casitas Mutual originally 
envisioned use of these grant monies for a stand-alone project.  However, consolidation efforts 
are underway, and the original scope of work has shifted toward work that aligns with the 
consolidation of the two systems.  

Under a revised scope of work, DWR has agreed to transfer the remaining grant funds along 
with the grant agreement totaling approximately $821,480.80 to VRWD. On November 15, 
2023, the Board adopted Resolution 2023-363 to accept the transfer of the DWR grant. The 
current agreement between Casitas Mutual and DWR will be closed out and a new agreement 
between VRWD and DWR will be drafted. It is important to note there is no matching 
requirement with the acceptance of this grant as matching requirements have already 
been met. 

In conjunction with the DWR grant agreement, there is an outstanding invoice from NextGen 
Engineering, Inc. (NextGen) in the amount of $16,563.75, to be paid from the remaining grant 
funds. This will require a Consulting Agreement with NextGen for work performed as part of 
the consolidation effort.  

The DWR Grant Agreement and the NextGen Consulting Agreement have been reviewed by 
the District’s legal counsel and edits have been incorporated. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 The DWR grant will provide approximately $821,480.80 with no match requirement.
 Related work for consolidation efforts with Casitas Mutual’s infrastructure will be 100%

funded through a grant from the State Revolving Funds.
 An additional, zero-interest loan of up to $10M for unrelated projects may be available

for the Board’s consideration in the future.

Attachments: 
A – DWR DRAFT Grant Agreement 
B – NextGen Engineering Consulting Agreement 

Agenda Packet - Page 27 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 1 of 36 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

AGREEMENT NUMBER: 4600014884 

FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

AND 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

FOR THE 

CASITAS WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT AND DROUGHT RESILIENCY PROJECT 

A PART OF THE SMALL COMMUNITY DROUGHT RELIEF PROGRAM 

FUNDED BY  

THE BUDGET ACT OF 2021   

(STATS. 2021, CH. 240, § 80) 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 28 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 2 of 36 

FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES) AND 

CASITAS MUTUAL WATER COMPANY 

<SAP AGREEMENT NUMBER> 

SMALL COMMUNITY DROUGHT RELIEF PROGRAM 

THIS FUNDING AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Department of Water Resources 
of the State of California, herein referred to as the "State" and the Ventura River Water District, a 
special district in the State of California, duly organized, existing, and acting pursuant to the laws 
thereof, herein referred to as the "Grantee," which parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. PURPOSE. State shall provide funding pursuant to the Budget Act of 2021 (Stats. 2021, ch. 240, 

§ 80) to the Grantee to assist in financing the Casitas Water System Improvement and Drought 
Resiliency Project (Project).  By executing this Agreement, the Grantee certifies that the purpose 
of the Project is in response to a drought scenario, as defined by Water Code section 13198(a) 
and is intended to: (1) address immediate impacts on human health and safety; (2) address 
immediate impacts on fish and wildlife resources; or, (3) provide water to persons or communities 
that lose or are threatened with the loss or contamination of water supplies. 

2. TERM OF FUNDING AGREEMENT. The term of this Funding Agreement begins on the date this 
Funding Agreement is initially executed by State, through final payment plus three (3) years 
unless otherwise terminated or amended as provided in this Agreement.  However, all work shall 
be completed by July 31, 2025, and no funds may be requested after October 31, 2025.   

3. PROJECT COST. The reasonable cost of the Project is estimated to be $821,480.80. 

4. FUNDING AMOUNT. The maximum amount payable by the State under this Agreement shall not 
exceed $821,480.80. 

5. GRANTEE REQUIRED COST SHARE. Grantee agrees to fund the difference between the actual 
Project Cost in Paragraph 3 and the amount specified in Paragraph 4, if any.    

6. BASIC CONDITIONS. State shall have no obligation to disburse money for the Project under this 
Funding Agreement until Grantee has satisfied the following conditions:  

A. For the term of this Funding Agreement, Grantee submits timely Quarterly Progress Reports as 
required by Paragraph 13, “Submission of Reports.” 

B. Grantee submits all deliverables as specified in Paragraph 13 of this Funding Agreement and in 
Exhibit A. 

C. Prior to the commencement of construction or implementation activities, Grantee shall submit 
the following to the State: 

i. Final plans and specifications certified by a California Registered Civil Engineer as to 
compliance for the Project as listed in Exhibit A of this Funding Agreement. 

ii. Work that is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and or 
environmental permitting shall not proceed under this Funding Agreement until the following 
actions are performed: 

a. Grantee submits to the State all applicable environmental permits as indicated on the 
Environmental Information Form to the State, and 

b. Documents that satisfy the CEQA process are received by the State, and 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 29 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 3 of 36 

c. Grantee receives written concurrence from the State of the Lead Agency’s CEQA 
document(s) and State notice of verification of environmental permit submittal. 

State’s concurrence of Lead Agency’s CEQA documents is fully discretionary and shall 
constitute a condition precedent to any work (i.e., construction or implementation activities) for 
which it is required. Once CEQA documentation has been completed, State will consider the 
environmental documents and decide whether to continue to fund the Project or to require 
changes, alterations, or other mitigation. Grantee must also demonstrate that it has complied 
with all applicable requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) by submitting 
copies of any environmental documents, including environmental impact statements, Finding of 
No Significant Impact, mitigation monitoring programs, and environmental permits as may be 
required prior to beginning construction/implementation. 

7. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS. State will disburse to Grantee the amount approved, subject to the 
availability of funds through normal State processes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Funding Agreement, no disbursement shall be required at any time or in any manner which is in 
violation of, or in conflict with, federal or state laws, rules, or regulations pursuant to any federal 
statute or regulation. Any and all money disbursed to Grantee under this Funding Agreement shall 
be deposited in a separate account and shall be used solely to pay Eligible Project Costs. 

8. ELIGIBLE PROJECT COST. Grantee shall apply State funds received only to Eligible Project 
Costs in accordance with applicable provisions of the law and Exhibit B. Eligible Project Costs 
include the reasonable costs of studies, engineering, design, land and easement acquisition, legal 
fees, preparation of environmental documentation, environmental mitigations, monitoring, and 
project construction. Reimbursable administrative expenses are the necessary costs incidental but 
directly related to the Project included in this Agreement. Work performed on the Project after 
March 4, 2022, shall be eligible for reimbursement. 

Costs that are not eligible for reimbursement include, but are not limited to the following items: 

A. Costs incurred prior to March 4, 2022. 

B. Operation and maintenance costs, including post-construction performance and monitoring 
costs. 

C. Purchase of equipment not an integral part of the Project. 

D. Establishing a reserve fund. 

E. Monitoring and assessment costs for efforts required after Project construction is complete. 

F. Replacement of existing funding sources for ongoing programs. 

G. Payment of federal or state taxes. 

H. Costs incurred as part of any necessary response and cleanup activities required under the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act; Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act; Hazardous Substances Account Act; or other applicable law. 

I. Support of existing agency requirements and mandates (e.g., punitive regulatory agency 
requirement). 

J. Purchase of land in excess of the minimum required acreage necessary to operate as an 
integral part of a project, as set forth and detailed by engineering and feasibility studies, or land 
purchased prior to March 4, 2022. 

K. Overhead and indirect costs.  “Indirect Costs” means those costs that are incurred for a 
common or joint purpose benefiting more than one cost objective and are not readily 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 30 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 4 of 36 

assignable to the funded project (i.e., costs that are not directly related to the funded project).  
Examples of Indirect Costs include but are not limited to: central service costs; general 
administration of the Grantee; non-project-specific accounting and personnel services 
performed within the Grantee’s organization; depreciation or use allowances on buildings and 
equipment; the costs of operating and maintaining non-project-specific facilities; tuition; 
conference fees; and, generic overhead or markup.  This prohibition applies to the Grantee 
and any subcontract or sub-agreement for work on the Project that will be reimbursed pursuant 
to this Agreement. 

9. METHOD OF PAYMENT. After the disbursement requirements in Paragraph 6 “Basic Conditions” 
are met, State will disburse the whole or portions of State funding to Grantee, following receipt 
from Grantee via US mail or Express mail delivery of a “wet signature” invoice, or an electronic 
invoice certified and transmitted via DocuSign for costs incurred, including Cost Share, and timely 
Quarterly Progress Reports as required by Paragraph 13, “Submission of Reports.” Payment will 
be made no more frequently than monthly, in arrears, upon receipt of an invoice bearing the 
Funding Agreement number. State will notify Grantee, in a timely manner, whenever, upon review 
of an Invoice, State determines that any portion or portions of the costs claimed are not eligible 
costs or is not supported by documentation or receipts acceptable to State. Grantee may, within 
thirty (30) calendar days of the date of receipt of such notice, submit additional documentation to 
State to cure such deficiency(ies). If Grantee fails to submit adequate documentation curing the 
deficiency(ies), State will adjust the pending invoice by the amount of ineligible or unapproved 
costs. 

Invoices submitted by Grantee shall include the following information:  

A. Costs incurred for work performed in implementing the Project during the period identified in the 
particular invoice. 

B. Costs incurred for any interests in real property (land or easements) that have been 
necessarily acquired for the Project during the period identified in the particular invoice for the 
implementation of the Project.  

C. Invoices shall be submitted on forms provided by State and shall meet the following format 
requirements: 

i. Invoices must contain the date of the invoice, the time period covered by the invoice, and 
the total amount due. 

ii. Invoices must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in Exhibit B. The 
amount claimed for salaries/wages/consultant fees must include a calculation formula (i.e., 
hours or days worked times the hourly or daily rate = the total amount claimed). 

iii. One set of sufficient evidence (i.e., receipts, copies of checks, timesheets) must be 
provided for all costs included in the invoice. 

iv. Each invoice shall clearly delineate those costs claimed for reimbursement from the State’s 
funding amount, as depicted in Paragraph 4, “Funding Amount” and those costs that 
represent Grantee’s costs, as applicable, in Paragraph 5, “Grantee Required Cost Share.” 

v. Invoices can be submitted by one of the following methods. 

a. Via either email at Michael.Weil@water.ca.gov or upload it on DWR’s GRanTS 
website (Grants.water.ca.gov). 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 31 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 5 of 36 

b. Mail the invoice with the original “wet signature” to the following address: Michael 
Weil, Department of Water Resources, Southern Region Office, 770 Fairmount 
Avenue Suite 200, Glendale, CA 91203. 

All invoices submitted shall be accurate and signed under penalty of law.  Any and all costs 
submitted pursuant to this Agreement shall only be for the tasks set forth herein.  The Grantee 
shall not submit any invoice containing costs that are ineligible or have been reimbursed from 
other funding sources unless required and specifically noted as such (i.e., match costs/cost 
share).  Any eligible costs for which the Grantee is seeking reimbursement shall not be 
reimbursed from any other source.  Double or multiple billing for time, services, or any other 
eligible cost is illegal and constitutes fraud.  Any suspected occurrences of fraud, forgery, 
embezzlement, theft, or any other misuse of public funds may result in suspension of 
disbursements of grant funds and/or termination of this Agreement requiring the repayment of all 
funds disbursed hereunder plus interest.  Additionally, the State may request an audit pursuant to 
Paragraph D.5 and refer the matter to the Attorney General’s Office or the appropriate district 
attorney’s office for criminal prosecution or the imposition of civil liability.  (Civ. Code, §§ 1572-
1573; Pen. Code, §§ 115, 470, 487-489.) 

10. WITHHOLDING OF DISBURSEMENTS BY STATE. If State determines that the Project is not 
being implemented in accordance with the provisions of this Funding Agreement, or that Grantee 
has failed in any other respect to comply with the provisions of this Funding Agreement, and if 
Grantee does not remedy any such failure to State’s satisfaction, State may withhold from 
Grantee all or any portion of the State funding and take any other action that it deems necessary 
to protect its interests. Where a portion of the State funding has been disbursed to the Grantee 
and State notifies Grantee of its decision not to release funds that have been withheld pursuant to 
Paragraph 11, the portion that has been disbursed shall thereafter be repaid immediately as 
directed by State. State may consider Grantee’s refusal to repay the requested disbursed amount 
a contract breach subject to the default provisions in Paragraph 11, “Default Provisions.” If State 
notifies Grantee of its decision to withhold the entire funding amount from Grantee pursuant to this 
Paragraph, this Funding Agreement shall terminate upon receipt of such notice by Grantee and 
the State shall no longer be required to provide funds under this Funding Agreement and the 
Funding Agreement shall no longer be binding on either party. 

11. DEFAULT PROVISIONS. Grantee will be in default under this Funding Agreement if any of the 
following occur: 

A. Substantial breaches of this Funding Agreement, or any supplement or amendment to it, or 
any other agreement between Grantee and State evidencing or securing Grantee’s obligations. 

B. Making any false warranty, representation, or statement with respect to this Funding 
Agreement, the application, or any documents filed to obtain grant funding. 

C. Failure to operate or maintain the Project in accordance with this Funding Agreement.  

D. Failure to make any remittance required by this Funding Agreement, including any remittance 
recommended as the result of an audit conducted pursuant to Paragraph D.5. 

E. Failure to submit timely progress reports. 

F. Failure to routinely invoice State. 

G. Failure to meet any of the requirements set forth in Paragraph 12, “Continuing Eligibility.” 

Should an event of default occur, State shall provide a notice of default to the Grantee and shall 
give Grantee at least ten (10) calendar days to cure the default from the date the notice is sent via 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 32 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 6 of 36 

first-class mail to the Grantee. If the Grantee fails to cure the default within the time prescribed by 
the State, State may do any of the following: 
A. Declare the funding disbursed be immediately repaid. 

B. Terminate any obligation to make future payments to Grantee. 

C. Terminate the Funding Agreement. 

D. Take any other action that it deems necessary to protect its interests.  

In the event State finds it necessary to enforce this provision of this Funding Agreement in the 
manner provided by law, Grantee agrees to pay all costs incurred by State including, but not 
limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, legal expenses, and costs.  

12. CONTINUING ELIGIBILITY. Grantee must meet the following ongoing requirement(s) to remain 
eligible to receive State funds: 

A. Grantee must adhere to the protocols developed pursuant to The Open and Transparent Water 
Data Act (Wat. Code, § 12406) for data sharing, transparency, documentation, and quality 
control. 

B. If the Grantee diverting surface water, the Grantee must maintain compliance with diversion 
reporting requirements as outlined in Water Code section 5100 et seq. 

C. If applicable, maintain compliance with the Urban Water Management Planning Act (Wat. Code, 
§ 10610 et seq.). 

D. If applicable, maintain compliance with Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction 
requirements outlined in Water Code Section 10608, et seq. 

E. On March 4, 2022, the Governor issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the EO) regarding Economic 
Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. The EO may be found at: 
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/3.4.22-Russia-Ukraine-Executive-
Order.pdf. “Economic Sanctions” refers to sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in 
response to Russia’s actions in Ukraine, as well as any sanctions imposed under State law.  
The EO directs DWR to terminate funding agreements with, and to refrain from entering any 
new agreements with, individuals or entities that are determined to be a target of Economic 
Sanctions. Accordingly, should the State determine that the Grantee is a target of Economic 
Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that 
shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement. The State shall provide the Grantee 
advance written notice of such termination, allowing the Grantee at least 30 calendar days to 
provide a written response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the State. 

13. SUBMISSION OF REPORTS. The submittal and approval of all reports is a requirement for the 
successful completion of this Funding Agreement. Reports shall meet generally accepted 
professional standards for technical reporting and shall be proofread for content, numerical 
accuracy, spelling, and grammar prior to submittal to State. All reports shall be submitted to the 
State’s Project Manager and shall be submitted via email or DWR’s “Grant Review and Tracking 
System” (GRanTS). If requested, Grantee shall promptly provide any additional information 
deemed necessary by State for the approval of reports. Reports shall be presented in the formats 
described in the applicable portion of Exhibit F. The timely submittal of reports is a requirement for 
initial and continued disbursement of State funds. Submittal and subsequent approval by the 
State, of a Project Completion Report is a requirement for the release of any funds retained for 
such project. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 33 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 7 of 36 

A. Quarterly Progress Reports: Grantee shall submit Quarterly Progress Reports to meet the 
State’s requirement for disbursement of funds. Quarterly Progress Reports shall be sent 
directly to the Project Manager via email or uploaded via GRanTS, and the State’s Project 
Manager notified of upload. Quarterly Progress Reports shall, in part, provide a brief 
description of the work performed, Grantee’s activities, milestones achieved, any 
accomplishments and any problems encountered in the performance of the work under this 
Funding Agreement during the reporting period. The first Quarterly Progress Report should be 
submitted to the State no later than three months after the execution of the agreement with 
future reports then due on successive three-month increments based on the invoicing 
schedule and this date.  

B. Project Completion Report: Grantee shall prepare and submit to State a Project Completion 
Report for the Project. Grantee shall submit the Project Completion Report within ninety (90) 
calendar days of project completion. The Project Completion Report shall include, in part, a 
description of actual work done, any changes or amendments to the Project, and a final 
schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress, copies of any final documents or 
reports generated or utilized during the Project. The Project Completion Report shall also 
include, if applicable, certification of final project by a registered civil engineer, consistent with 
Standard Condition D.17, “Final Inspections and Certification of Registered Civil Engineer”. A 
DWR “Certification of Project Completion” form will be provided by the State.  

14. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PROJECT. For the useful life of construction and 
implementation projects and in consideration of the funding made by State, Grantee agrees to 
ensure or cause to be performed the commencement and continued operation of the Project, and 
shall ensure or cause the Project to be operated in an efficient and economical manner; shall 
ensure all repairs, renewals, and replacements necessary to the efficient operation of the same 
are provided; and shall ensure or cause the same to be maintained in as good and efficient 
condition as upon its construction, ordinary and reasonable wear and depreciation excepted. The 
State shall not be liable for any cost of such maintenance, management, or operation. Grantee or 
their successors may, with the written approval of State, transfer this responsibility to use, 
manage, and maintain the property. For purposes of this Funding Agreement, “useful life” means 
period during which an asset, property, or activity is expected to be usable for the purpose it was 
acquired or implemented; “operation costs” include direct costs incurred for material and labor 
needed for operations, utilities, insurance, and similar expenses, and  “maintenance costs” include 
ordinary repairs and replacements of a recurring nature necessary for capital assets and basic 
structures and the expenditure of funds necessary to replace or reconstruct capital assets or basic 
structures. Refusal of Grantee to ensure operation and maintenance of the Project in accordance 
with this provision may, at the option of State, be considered a breach of this Funding Agreement 
and may be treated as default under Paragraph 11, “Default Provisions.” 

15. NOTIFICATION OF STATE. Grantee shall promptly notify State, in writing, of the following items:  

A. Events or proposed changes that could affect the scope, budget, or work performed under this 
Funding Agreement. Grantee agrees that no substantial change in the scope of the Project 
will be undertaken until written notice of the proposed change has been provided to State and 
State has given written approval for such change. Substantial changes generally include 
changes to the scope of work, schedule or term, and budget.  

B. Any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments and/or results of this Funding 
Agreement and provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by State’s 
representatives. Grantee shall make such notification at least 14 calendar days prior to the 
event. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 34 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 8 of 36 

C. Discovery of any potential archaeological or historical resource.  Should a potential 
archaeological or historical resource be discovered during construction, the Grantee agrees 
that all work in the area of the find will cease until a qualified archaeologist has evaluated the 
situation and made recommendations regarding preservation of the resource, and the State 
has determined what actions should be taken to protect and preserve the resource.  The 
Grantee agrees to implement appropriate actions as directed by the State. 

D. The initiation of any litigation or the threat of litigation against the Grantee regarding the 
Project or that may affect the Project in any way.  

E. Final inspection of the completed work on a project by a Registered Civil Engineer, in 
accordance with Standard Condition D.17, “Final Inspections and Certification of Registered 
Civil Engineer.” Grantee shall notify the State’s Project Manager of the inspection date at least 
14 calendar days prior to the inspection in order to provide State the opportunity to participate 
in the inspection. 

16. NOTICES. Any notice, demand, request, consent, or approval that either party desires or is 
required to give to the other party under this Funding Agreement shall be in writing. Notices may 
be transmitted by any of the following means:  

A. By delivery in person. 

B. By certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.  

C. By “overnight” delivery service, provided that next-business-day delivery is requested by the 
sender. 

D. By electronic means.  

E. Notices delivered in person will be deemed effective immediately on receipt (or refusal of 
delivery or receipt). Notices sent by certified mail will be deemed effective given ten (10) 
calendar days after the date deposited with the U. S. Postal Service. Notices sent by overnight 
delivery service will be deemed effective one business day after the date deposited with the 
delivery service. Notices sent electronically will be effective on the date of transmission, which 
is documented in writing. Notices shall be sent to the below addresses. Either party may, by 
written notice to the other, designate a different address that shall be substituted for the one 
below. 

17. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION.  Upon completion of this Funding Agreement, Grantee’s 
performance will be evaluated by the State and a copy of the evaluation will be placed in the State 
file and a copy sent to the Grantee. 

18. PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES. The Project Representatives during the term of this Funding 
Agreement are as follows:  

 
Department of Water Resources 

Arthur Hinojosa 

Manager, Division of Regional Assistance 

P.O. Box 942836 

Sacramento, CA 94236 

Phone: (916) 902-6713 

Email: Arthur.Hinojosa@water.ca.gov 

 
Ventura River Water District 

Alma Quezada 

General Manager 

409 Old Baldwin Rd. 

Ojai, CA 93023 

Phone: (805) 707 4086 

Email: alma@vrwd.ca.gov 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 35 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 9 of 36 

Direct all inquiries to the Project Manager: 
 
Department of Water Resources 

Michael Weil 

Division of Regional Assistance 

770 Fairmont Ave, Suite 200 

Glendale, CA 91203 

Phone: (818) 439-9948 

Email: Michael.Weil@water.ca.gov 

 

Ventura River Water District 

Alma Quezada 

General Manager 

409 Old Baldwin Rd. 

Ojai, CA 93023 

Phone: (805) 707 4086 

Email: alma@vrwd.ca.gov 

Either party may change its Project Representative or Project Manager upon written notice to the 
other party. 

19. STANDARD PROVISIONS AND INTEGRATION. This Funding Agreement is complete and is the 
final Agreement between the parties.  The following Exhibits are attached and made a part of this 
Funding Agreement by this reference: 

Exhibit A – WORK PLAN 

Exhibit B – BUDGET 

Exhibit C – SCHEDULE 

Exhibit D – STANDARD CONDITIONS 

Exhibit E – GRANTEE’S AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

Exhibit F – REPORT FORMATS AND REQUIREMENTS 

Exhibit G – STATE AUDIT DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS  

Exhibit H – INFORMATION NEEDED FOR ESCROW PROCESSING AND CLOSURE  

Exhibit I – APPRAISAL SPECIFICATIONS 

Exhibit J – ADVANCE PAYMENT 

 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 36 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 10 of 36 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Funding Agreement. 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

 

______________________________ 

Arthur Hinojosa, Manager  

Division of Regional Assistance 

 
Date__________________________ 

VENTURA RIVER WATER 
DISTRICT 

 

______________________________ 

Alma Quezada,  General Manager 

 

Date__________________________ 

 
 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Form and Sufficiency 
 
______________________________ 

Robin Brewer, Assistant General Counsel 

Office of General Counsel 

 

Date__________________________ 

 

 

 

  

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 37 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 11 of 36 

Exhibit A 

WORK PLAN 

 
Project Title: Casitas Water System Improvement and Drought Resiliency Project 

Funding Recipient: Ventura River Water District 

Project Description: The community of Casitas has experienced dropping well levels and currently 
does not have enough water to meet demand because of drought. Casitas Mutual Water Company 
(CMWC) is seeking to consolidate its water system with the Grantee through a separate consolidation 
agreement. This Project is comprised of replacing approximately 1,500 feet of the Grantee’s water 
distribution pipelines along with any necessary appurtenances and replacing approximately 15 
service laterals and water meters in support of the grantee’s consolidation with the CMWC water 
system. Replacement of the remaining pipelines, service laterals, and water meters within the Casitas 
Mutual service area will be deferred to the larger and related consolidation project of the Grantee and 
CMWC’s water systems. 
 
Task 1 – Project Administration  

This task includes project administration, invoicing, and reporting. 

Project administration includes working with DWR to develop and execute the Grant 
Agreement, administration of the Project including overseeing the budget and schedule, 
construction management and inspection, making payments to engineers and contractors after 
inspections and/or approval of work, and other activities related to the completion of the 
Project.  Includes attending weekly/monthly meetings (as needed) with DWR Project Manager.   

Invoicing includes, preparing and submitting invoices and appropriate backup documentation 
to the DWR Project Manager describing the work completed and listing the costs incurred 
during the billing cycle.  

Reporting includes preparing and submitting progress reports. Prepare quarterly reports and 
submit them to DWR. Draft Grant Completion Report and submit for DWR comment. Prepare 
final Grant Completion Report incorporating DWR comments. All reports should be prepared 
as specified in Exhibit F of this Agreement.  

Deliverables: 

 Records retention  
 Invoices and supporting documents 
 Quarterly progress reports 
 Draft Grant completion report  
 Final Grant completion report 

Task 2 – Design, Engineering Services, and Permitting 

This task includes a preliminary alignment, final design, engineering services, permitting, and 
bidding supportfor replacing approximately 1,500 feet of the Grantee’s water distribution 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 38 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 12 of 36 

pipelines along with necessary appurtenances and replacing approximately 15 service laterals 
and water meters. The activities include the following: 

 Creating design drawings, specifications, and cost estimates at 30%, 50%, 90%, 
and final stages.  

 Completing the Environmental Information Form and CEQA documents will be 
completed under a separate contract with the State Water Resources Control Board 
in support of the grantee’s consolidation project. 

 Obtaining other permits (if needed), and submitting them to the project manager for 
DWR’s approval prior to beginning construction  

 Completing Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) documents, if required 
 Preparing bidding documents, and procurement of contractor(s) 

Deliverables: 

 30%, 50%, 90%, and final plans and specifications  
 Environmental Information Form  
 Final CEQA documentation  
 Other necessary permits 
 Copy of Bid Documents 
 Proof of advertisement 
 Copy of awarded contract 
 Copy of notice to proceed 

 
Task 3 – Construction 

This task includes the construction of the Project including attending the preconstruction 
meeting, performing construction inspections, answering technical questions regarding the 
design, providing engineering support during construction, and preparing as-built drawings.  

The activities include the mobilization of contractor staff, materials, and equipment. There will 
be construction surveying and staking, potential installation of SWPPP Best Management 
Practices (BMPs), and CEQA mitigation measures. Traffic control, signs, and safety railings 
will be put up by the contractor as required. The contractor will determine the location for 
material and equipment storage. Coordination with the Dig Alert and underground utilities will 
be made. The installation of new water lines and service laterals will include trenching and 
excavation, placing the pipe, , and all other underground work. This may involve sheeting, 
shoring, and bracing of trenches, and drilling (boring) under utilities or street sections. Water 
lines will be tested for pressure and sanitized before connecting. Water meters will be installed 
and tested. Trenches will be filled, compacted and streets asphalt patched. A punch list will be 
made at "substantial completion", and then a final inspection made to complete the project. As-
Built drawings and close-out paperwork will be completed.  

Deliverables: 

 Construction photos 
 Construction reports 
 Change orders, if any 
 As-built drawings 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 39 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 13 of 36 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 40 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 14 of 36 

Exhibit B 

BUDGET 
 

All work associated with the Project must be completed prior to payment of retention. The Grantee 
is required to maintain all financial documents related to the Project in accordance with Exhibit G 
(State Audit Document Requirements for Grantees). 

Task Funding 
Amount 

Cost Share: 
Non-State 

Fund 
Source 

Total Cost 

Task 1 – Project Administration   $     11,500.00   $  
-  

 $     11,500.00  

Task 2 – Design, Engineering Services, and 
Permitting 

 $     78,564.00   $  
-  

 $     78,564.00  

Task 3 – Construction  $   731,417.80   $  
-  

 $   731,417.80  

Grand Total  $   821,481.80   $  
-  

 $   821,481.80  

 

 
 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 41 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 15 of 36 

Exhibit C 
SCHEDULE 

 

Task Start Date End Date 

Task 1 – Project Administration  3/4/2022 
 

7/31/2025 

Task 2 – Design, Engineering Services, 
and Permitting  

4/1/2022 
 

12/31/2024 

Task 3 – Construction 
 

12/16/2024 
 

7/31/2025 
 
 
  

 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 42 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 16 of 36 

Exhibit D 

STANDARD CONDITIONS 

D.1. ACCOUNTING AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDING DISBURSEMENT: 

A. Separate Accounting of Funding Disbursements: Grantee shall account for the money 
disbursed pursuant to this Funding Agreement separately from all other Grantee funds. 
Grantee shall maintain audit and accounting procedures that are in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and practices, consistently applied. Grantee shall 
keep complete and accurate records of all receipts and disbursements on expenditures of 
such funds. Grantee shall require its contractors or subcontractors to maintain books, 
records, and other documents pertinent to their work in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and practices. Records are subject to inspection by State at any and 
all reasonable times. 

B. Disposition of Money Disbursed: All money disbursed pursuant to this Funding Agreement 
shall be deposited in a separate account, administered, and accounted for pursuant to the 
provisions of applicable law. 

C. Remittance of Unexpended Funds: Grantee shall remit to State any unexpended funds that 
were disbursed to Grantee under this Funding Agreement and were not used to pay Eligible 
Project Costs within a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the final disbursement from 
State to Grantee of funds or, within thirty (30) calendar days of the expiration of the Funding 
Agreement, whichever comes first. 

D.2. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CREDIT AND SIGNAGE: Grantee shall include appropriate 
acknowledgement of credit to the State for its support when promoting the Project or using any 
data and/or information developed under this Funding Agreement. Signage shall be posted in a 
prominent location at Project site(s) (if applicable) or at the Grantee’s headquarters and shall 
include the Department of Water Resources color logo and the following disclosure statement: 
“Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part from the State Department of Water 
Resources.”  The Grantee shall also include in each of its contracts for work under this 
Agreement a provision that incorporates the requirements stated within this Paragraph. 

D.3. AMENDMENT: This Funding Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of 
the Parties, except insofar as any proposed amendments are in any way contrary to applicable 
law. Requests by the Grantee for amendments must be in writing stating the amendment 
request and the reason for the request. Requests solely for a time extension must be 
submitted at least 90 days prior to the work completion date set forth in Paragraph 2.  Any 
other request for an amendment must be submitted at least 180 days prior to the work 
completion date set forth in Paragraph 2.  State shall have no obligation to agree to an 
amendment. 

D.4. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: By signing this Funding Agreement, Grantee assures 
State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, (42 U.S.C. § 
12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable 
regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 

D.5. AUDITS: State reserves the right to conduct an audit at any time between the execution of this 
Funding Agreement and the completion of the Project, with the costs of such audit borne by 
State. After completion of the Project, State may require Grantee to conduct a final audit to 
State’s specifications, at Grantee’s expense, such audit to be conducted by and a report 
prepared by an independent Certified Public Accountant. Failure or refusal by Grantee to 
comply with this provision shall be considered a breach of this Funding Agreement, and State 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 43 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 17 of 36 

may elect to pursue any remedies provided in Paragraph 11 or take any other action it deems 
necessary to protect its interests.  The Grantee agrees it shall return any audit disallowances 
to the State. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 8546.7, the Grantee shall be subject to the examination 
and audit by the State for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Funding 
Agreement with respect of all matters connected with this Funding Agreement, including but 
not limited to, the cost of administering this Funding Agreement.  All records of Grantee or its 
contractor or subcontractors shall be preserved for this purpose for at least three (3) years 
after receipt of the final disbursement under this Agreement.  

D.6. BUDGET CONTINGENCY: If the Budget Act of the current year covered under this Funding 
Agreement does not appropriate sufficient funds for this program, this Funding Agreement 
shall be of no force and effect. This provision shall be construed as a condition precedent to 
the obligation of State to make any payments under this Funding Agreement. In this event, 
State shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Grantee or to furnish any other 
considerations under this Funding Agreement and Grantee shall not be obligated to perform 
any provisions of this Funding Agreement. Nothing in this Funding Agreement shall be 
construed to provide Grantee with a right of priority for payment over any other Grantee. If 
funding for any fiscal year after the current year covered by this Funding Agreement is reduced 
or deleted by the Budget Act, by Executive Order, or by order of the Department of Finance, 
the State shall have the option to either cancel this Funding Agreement with no liability 
occurring to State or offer a Funding Agreement amendment to Grantee to reflect the reduced 
amount. 

D.7. CEQA: Activities funded under this Funding Agreement, regardless of funding source, must be 
in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). (Pub. Resources Code, § 
21000 et seq.)  Any work that is subject to CEQA and funded under this Agreement shall not 
proceed until documents that satisfy the CEQA process are received by the State’s Project 
Manager and the State has completed its CEQA compliance. Work funded under this 
Agreement that is subject to a CEQA document shall not proceed until and unless approved by 
the Department of Water Resources. Such approval is fully discretionary and shall constitute a 
condition precedent to any work for which it is required. If CEQA compliance by the Grantee is 
not complete at the time the State signs this Agreement, once State has considered the 
environmental documents, it may decide to require changes, alterations, or other mitigation to 
the Project; or to not fund the Project. Should the State decide to not fund the Project, this 
Agreement shall be terminated in accordance with Paragraph 11. 

D.8. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT: The Grantee acknowledges in accordance with Public 
Contract Code section 7110, that: 

A. The Grantee recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall 
fully comply with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support 
enforcement, including, but not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with 
earnings assignment orders, as provided in Family Code section 5200 et seq.; and 

B. The Grantee, to the best of its knowledge, is fully complying with the earnings assignment 
orders of all employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire 
Registry maintained by the California Employment Development Department. 

D.9. CLAIMS DISPUTE: Any claim that the Grantee may have regarding performance of this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, claims for additional compensation or extension of 
time, shall be submitted to the DWR Project Representative, within thirty (30) days of the 
Grantee’s knowledge of the claim. State and Grantee shall then attempt to negotiate a 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 44 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 18 of 36 

resolution of such claim and process an amendment to this Agreement to implement the terms 
of any such resolution. 

D.10. COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND PROCUREMENTS: Grantee’s contracts with other entities for 
the acquisition of goods and services and construction of public works with funds provided by 
State under this Funding Agreement must be in writing and shall comply with all applicable 
laws and regulations regarding the securing of competitive bids and undertaking competitive 
negotiations.  If the Grantee does not have a written policy to award contracts through a 
competitive bidding or sole source process, the Department of General Services’ State 
Contracting Manual rules must be followed and are available at: 
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-Services-Resources-
List-Folder/State-Contracting. 

D.11. COMPUTER SOFTWARE: Grantee certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in 
place to ensure that state funds will not be used in the performance of this Funding Agreement 
for the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright 
laws. 

D.12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: All participants are subject to State and Federal conflict of interest 
laws. Failure to comply with these laws, including business and financial disclosure provisions, 
will result in the application being rejected and any subsequent contract being declared void. 
Other legal action may also be taken. Applicable statutes include, but are not limited to, 
Government Code section 1090 and Public Contract Code sections 10410 and 10411, for 
State conflict of interest requirements. 

A. Current State Employees: No State officer or employee shall engage in any employment, 
activity, or enterprise from which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a 
financial interest, and which is sponsored or funded by any State agency, unless the 
employment, activity, or enterprise is required as a condition of regular State employment. 
No State officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any State agency to provide goods or services. 

B. Former State Employees: For the two-year period from the date, he or she left State 
employment, no former State officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or 
she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements, or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by 
any State agency. For the twelve-month period from the date, he or she left State 
employment, no former State officer or employee may enter into a contract with any State 
agency if he or she was employed by that State agency in a policy-making position in the 
same general subject area as the proposed contract within the twelve-month period prior to 
his or her leaving State service. 

C. Employees of the Grantee: Employees of the Grantee shall comply with all applicable 
provisions of law pertaining to conflicts of interest, including but not limited to any 
applicable conflict of interest provisions of the California Political Reform Act. (Gov. Code, § 
87100 et seq.) 

D. Employees and Consultants to the Grantee: Individuals working on behalf of the Grantee 
may be required by the Department to file a Statement of Economic Interests (Fair Political 
Practices Commission Form 700) if it is determined that an individual is a consultant for 
Political Reform Act purposes. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 45 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 19 of 36 

D.13. DELIVERY OF INFORMATION, REPORTS, AND DATA: Grantee agrees to expeditiously 
provide throughout the term of this Funding Agreement, such reports, data, information, and 
certifications as may be reasonably required by State. 

D.14. DISPOSITION OF EQUIPMENT: Grantee shall provide to State, not less than 30 calendar 
days prior to submission of the final invoice, an itemized inventory of equipment purchased 
with funds provided by State. The inventory shall include all items with a current estimated fair 
market value of more than $5,000.00 per item. Within 60 calendar days of receipt of such 
inventory, State shall provide Grantee with a list of the items on the inventory that State will 
take title to. All other items shall become the property of Grantee. State shall arrange for 
delivery from Grantee of items that it takes title to. Cost of transportation, if any, shall be borne 
by State. 

D.15. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION: Certification of Compliance: By signing this 
Funding Agreement, Grantee, its contractors or subcontractors hereby certify, under penalty of 
perjury under the laws of State of California, compliance with the requirements of the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1990 (Gov. Code, § 8350 et seq.) and have or will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 

A. Publish a statement notifying employees, contractors, and subcontractors that unlawful 
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees, contractors, or 
subcontractors for violations, as required by the Government Code section 8355. 

B. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program, as required by Government Code section 8355 
to inform employees, contractors, or subcontractors about all of the following: 

i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, 

ii. Grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, 

iii. Any available counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and 

iv. Penalties that may be imposed upon employees, contractors, and subcontractors for 
drug abuse violations. 

C. Provide, as required by Government Code section 8355, that every employee, contractor, 
and/or subcontractor who works under this Funding Agreement: 

i. Will receive a copy of Grantee’s drug-free policy statement, and 

ii. Will agree to abide by terms of Grantee’s condition of employment, contract, or 
subcontract. 

D.16. EASEMENTS: Where the Grantee acquires property in fee title or funds improvements to real 
property already owned in fee by the Grantee using State funds provided through this Funding 
Agreement, an appropriate easement or other title restriction providing for floodplain 
preservation and agricultural and/or wildlife habitat conservation for the subject property in 
perpetuity, approved by the State, shall be conveyed to a regulatory or trustee agency or 
conservation group acceptable to the State. The easement or other title restriction must be in 
the first position ahead of any recorded mortgage or lien on the property unless this 
requirement is waived by the State. 

Where the Grantee acquires an easement under this Agreement, the Grantee agrees to 
monitor and enforce the terms of the easement, unless the easement is subsequently 
transferred to another land management or conservation organization or entity with State 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 46 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 20 of 36 

permission, at which time monitoring and enforcement responsibilities will transfer to the new 
easement owner. 

Failure to provide an easement acceptable to the State may result in termination of this 
Agreement.  

D.17. FINAL INSPECTIONS AND CERTIFICATION OF REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER: Upon 
completion of the Project, Grantee shall provide for a final inspection and certification by a 
California Registered Civil Engineer that the Project has been completed in accordance with 
submitted final plans and specifications and any modifications thereto and in accordance with 
this Funding Agreement. 

D.18. GOVERNING LAW: This Funding Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

D.19. GRANTEE'S RESPONSIBILITIES: Grantee and its representatives shall:  

A. Faithfully and expeditiously perform or cause to be performed all project work as described 
in Exhibit A (Work Plan) and in accordance with Project Exhibit B (Budget) and Exhibit C 
(Schedule).  

B. Accept and agree to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions, and written commitments 
of this Funding Agreement, including all incorporated documents, and to fulfill all 
assurances, declarations, representations, and statements made by Grantee in the 
application, documents, amendments, and communications filed in support of its request 
for funding.  

C. Comply with all applicable California, federal, and local laws and regulations.  

D. Implement the Project in accordance with applicable provisions of the law.  

E. Fulfill its obligations under the Funding Agreement and be responsible for the performance 
of the Project.  

F. Obtain any and all permits, licenses, and approvals required for performing any work under 
this Funding Agreement, including those necessary to perform design, construction, or 
operation and maintenance of the Project. Grantee shall provide copies of permits and 
approvals to State. 

G. Be solely responsible for design, construction, and operation, and maintenance of the 
Project. Review or approval of plans, specifications, bid documents, or other construction 
documents by State is solely for the purpose of proper administration of funds by State and 
shall not be deemed to relieve or restrict responsibilities of Grantee under this Agreement. 

H. Be solely responsible for all work and for persons or entities engaged in work performed 
pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, contractors, subcontractors, 
suppliers, and providers of services.  The Grantee shall be responsible for any and all 
disputes arising out of its contracts for work on the Project, including but not limited to 
payment disputes with contractors and subcontractors.  The State will not mediate disputes 
between the Grantee and any other entity concerning responsibility for performance of 
work.  

D.20. INDEMNIFICATION: Grantee shall indemnify and hold and save the State, its officers, agents, 
and employees, free and harmless from any and all liabilities for any claims and damages 
(including inverse condemnation) that may arise out of the Project and this Agreement, 
including any breach of this Agreement. Grantee shall require its contractors or subcontractors 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 47 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 21 of 36 

to name the State, its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds on their liability 
insurance for activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

D.21. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY: Grantee, and the agents and employees of the Grantee, in the 
performance of the Funding Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as 
officers, employees, or agents of the State. 

D.22. INSPECTION OF BOOKS, RECORDS, AND REPORTS: During regular office hours, each of 
the parties hereto and their duly authorized representatives shall have the right to inspect and 
to make copies of any books, records, or reports of either party pertaining to this Funding 
Agreement or matters related hereto. Each of the parties hereto shall maintain and shall make 
available at all times for such inspection accurate records of all its costs, disbursements, and 
receipts with respect to its activities under this Funding Agreement. Failure or refusal by 
Grantee to comply with this provision shall be considered a breach of this Funding Agreement, 
and State may withhold disbursements to Grantee or take any other action it deems necessary 
to protect its interests. 

D.23. INSPECTIONS OF PROJECT BY STATE: State shall have the right to inspect the work being 
performed at any and all reasonable times during the term of the Grantee. This right shall 
extend to any subcontracts, and Grantee shall include provisions ensuring such access in all 
its contracts or subcontracts entered into pursuant to its Funding Agreement with State. 

D.24. LABOR CODE COMPLIANCE: The Grantee agrees to be bound by all the provisions of the 
Labor Code regarding prevailing wages and shall monitor all contracts subject to 
reimbursement from this Agreement to assure that the prevailing wage provisions of the Labor 
Code are being met.  Current Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) requirements may be 
found at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/lcp.asp.  For more information, please refer to DIR’s Public 
Works Manual at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/PWManualCombined.pdf.  The Grantee affirms 
that it is aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code, which requires every 
employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-
insurance, and the Grantee affirms that it will comply with such provisions before commencing 
the performance of the work under this Agreement and will make its contractors and 
subcontractors aware of this provision. 

D.25. MODIFICATION OF OVERALL WORK PLAN: At the request of the Grantee, the State may at 
its sole discretion approve non-material changes to the portions of Exhibits A, B, and C that 
concern the budget and schedule without formally amending this Funding Agreement. Non-
material changes with respect to the budget are changes that only result in reallocation of the 
budget and will not result in an increase in the amount of the State Funding Agreement. Non-
material changes with respect to the Project schedule are changes that will not extend the term 
of this Funding Agreement. Requests for non-material changes to the budget and schedule 
must be submitted by the Grantee to the State in writing and are not effective unless and until 
specifically approved by the State’s Program Manager in writing.  

D.26. NONDISCRIMINATION: During the performance of this Funding Agreement, Grantee and its 
contractors or subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex (gender), sexual 
orientation, race, color, ancestry, religion, creed, national origin (including language use 
restriction), pregnancy, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (cancer/genetic characteristics), age (over 40), marital/domestic partner status, 
gender identity, and denial of medical and family care leave or pregnancy disability leave. 
Grantee and its contractors or subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of 
their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 48 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 22 of 36 

harassment. Grantee and its contractors or subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of 
the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, § 12990.) and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 11000 et seq.). The applicable 
regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission are incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference. Grantee and its contractors or subcontractors shall give written notice 
of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective 
bargaining or other agreement. 

Grantee shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all 
subcontracts to perform work under the Funding Agreement. 

D.27. OPINIONS AND DETERMINATIONS: Where the terms of this Funding Agreement provide for 
action to be based upon, judgment, approval, review, or determination of either party hereto, 
such terms are not intended to be and shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, 
judgment, approval, review, or determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable. 

D.28. PERFORMANCE BOND:  Where contractors are used, the Grantee shall not authorize 
construction to begin until each contractor has furnished a performance bond in favor of the 
Grantee in the following amounts:  faithful performance (100%) of contract value, and labor 
and materials (100%) of contract value.  This requirement shall not apply to any contract for 
less than $25,000.00.  Any bond issued pursuant to this paragraph must be issued by a 
California-admitted surety. (Pub. Contract Code, § 7103; Code Civ. Proc., § 995.311.) 

D.29. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS: If this Funding Agreement includes services in excess 
of $200,000, the Grantee shall give priority consideration in filling vacancies in positions 
funded by the Funding Agreement to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions 
Code section 11200 in accordance with Public Contract Code section 10353. 

D.30. PROHIBITION AGAINST DISPOSAL OF PROJECT WITHOUT STATE PERMISSION: The 
Grantee shall not sell, abandon, lease, transfer, exchange, mortgage, hypothecate, or 
encumber in any manner whatsoever all or any portion of any real or other property 
necessarily connected or used in conjunction with the Project, or with Grantee’s service of 
water, without prior permission of State. Grantee shall not take any action, including but not 
limited to actions relating to user fees, charges, and assessments that could adversely affect 
the ability of Grantee to meet its obligations under this Funding Agreement, without prior 
written permission of State. State may require that the proceeds from the disposition of any 
real or personal property be remitted to State. 

D.31. PROJECT ACCESS:  The Grantee shall ensure that the State, the Governor of the State, or 
any authorized representatives of the foregoing, will have safe and suitable access to the 
Project site at all reasonable times during Project construction and thereafter for the term of 
this Agreement. 

D.32. REMAINING BALANCE:  In the event the Grantee does not submit invoices requesting all of 
the funds encumbered under this Funding Agreement, any remaining funds revert to the State.  
The State will notify the Grantee stating that the Project file is closed, and any remaining 
balance will be disencumbered and unavailable for further use under this Funding Agreement. 

D.33. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: The use by either party of any remedy specified herein for the 
enforcement of this Funding Agreement is not exclusive and shall not deprive the party using 
such remedy of, or limit the application of, any other remedy provided by law. 

D.34. RETENTION: The State shall withhold ten percent (10%) of the funds requested by the 
Grantee for reimbursement of Eligible Project Costs until the Project is completed and Final 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 49 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 23 of 36 

Report is approved.  Any retained amounts due to the Grantee will be promptly disbursed to 
the Grantee, without interest, upon completion of the Project. 

D.35. RIGHTS IN DATA: Grantee agrees that all data, plans, drawings, specifications, reports, 
computer programs, operating manuals, notes, and other written or graphic work produced in 
the performance of this Funding Agreement shall be made available to the State and shall be 
in the public domain to the extent to which release of such materials is required under the 
California Public Records Act. (Gov. Code, § 6250 et seq.)  Grantee may disclose, disseminate 
and use in whole or in part, any final form data and information received, collected, and 
developed under this Funding Agreement, subject to appropriate acknowledgement of credit to 
State for financial support. Grantee shall not utilize the materials for any profit-making venture 
or sell or grant rights to a third party who intends to do so. The State shall have the right to use 
any data described in this Paragraph for any public purpose. 

D.36. SEVERABILITY: Should any portion of this Funding Agreement be determined to be void or 
unenforceable, such shall be severed from the whole and the Funding Agreement shall 
continue as modified. 

D.37. SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS: This Funding Agreement may be subject to suspension of 
payments or termination, or both if the State determines that: 

A. Grantee, its contractors, or subcontractors have made a false certification, or 

B. Grantee, its contractors, or subcontractors violates the certification by failing to carry out 
the requirements noted in this Funding Agreement. 

D.38. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Funding Agreement and all of its provisions shall apply to 
and bind the successors and assigns of the parties. No assignment or transfer of this Funding 
Agreement or any part thereof, rights hereunder, or interest herein by the Grantee shall be 
valid unless and until it is approved by State and made subject to such reasonable terms and 
conditions as State may impose.  

D.39. TERMINATION BY GRANTEE: Subject to State approval which may be reasonably withheld, 
Grantee may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of contractual obligations. In doing so, 
Grantee must provide a reason(s) for termination. Grantee must submit all progress reports 
summarizing accomplishments up until termination date. 

D.40. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: Subject to the right to cure under Paragraph 11, the State may 
terminate this Funding Agreement and be relieved of any payments should Grantee fail to 
perform the requirements of this Funding Agreement at the time and in the manner herein, 
provided including but not limited to reasons of default under Paragraph 11. 

D.41. TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: The State may terminate this Agreement without cause on 
30 days’ advance written notice. The Grantee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses 
incurred up to the date of termination. 

D.42. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The parties to this Agreement do not intend to create rights 
in, or grant remedies to, any third party as a beneficiary of this Agreement, or any duty, 
covenant, obligation or understanding established herein. 

D.43. TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Funding Agreement. 

D.44. TRAVEL: Travel includes the reasonable and necessary costs of transportation, subsistence, 
and other associated costs incurred by personnel during the term of this Funding Agreement.  
Any reimbursement for necessary travel and per diem shall be at rates not to exceed those set 
by the California Department of Human Resources.  These rates may be found at:  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 50 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 24 of 36 

http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx. Reimbursement will be 
at the State travel and per diem amounts that are current as of the date costs are incurred.  No 
travel outside the State of California shall be reimbursed unless prior written authorization is 
obtained from the State. 

D.45. UNION ORGANIZING: Grantee, by signing this Funding Agreement, hereby acknowledges the 
applicability of Government Code sections 16645 through 16649 to this Funding Agreement. 
Furthermore, Grantee, by signing this Funding Agreement, hereby certifies that: 

A. No State funds disbursed by this Funding Agreement will be used to assist, promote, or 
deter union organizing. 

B. Grantee shall account for State funds disbursed for a specific expenditure by this Funding 
Agreement to show those funds were allocated to that expenditure. 

C. Grantee shall, where State funds are not designated as described in (b) above, allocate, on 
a pro rata basis, all disbursements that support the program. 

D. If Grantee makes expenditures to assist, promote, or deter union organizing, Grantee will 
maintain records sufficient to show that no State funds were used for those expenditures 
and that Grantee shall provide those records to the Attorney General upon request. 

D.46. VENUE:  The State and the Grantee hereby agree that any action arising out of this 
Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the Superior Court in and for the County of 
Sacramento, California, or in the United States District Court in and for the Eastern District of 
California.  The Grantee hereby waives any existing sovereign immunity for the purposes of 
this Agreement. 

D.47. WAIVER OF RIGHTS: None of the provisions of this Funding Agreement shall be deemed 
waived unless expressly waived in writing. It is the intention of the parties here to that from 
time to time either party may waive any of its rights under this Funding Agreement unless 
contrary to law. Any waiver by either party of rights arising in connection with the Funding 
Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver with respect to any other rights or matters, and 
such provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 51 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 25 of 36 

Exhibit E 

GRANTEE’S AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 52 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 26 of 36 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 53 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 27 of 36 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 54 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 28 of 36 

Exhibit F 

REPORT FORMATS AND REQUIREMENTS 

The following reporting formats should be utilized. Please obtain State approval prior to submitting a 
report in an alternative format.  

1. PROGRESS REPORTS 

Progress reports shall generally use the following format.  This format may be modified as 
necessary to effectively communicate information. 

PROJECT STATUS 

Describe the work performed during the time period covered by the report including but not 
limited to: 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 Legal matters 

 Engineering Evaluations 

 Environmental matters 

 Status of permits, easements, rights-of-way, rights of entry, and approvals as may be 
required by other State, federal, and/or local agencies 

 Major accomplishments during the quarter (i.e., tasks completed, milestones met, meetings 
held or attended, press releases, etc.) 

 Issues/concerns that have, will, or could affect the schedule or budget, with a 
recommendation on how to correct the matter 

 Describe differences between the work performed and the work outlined in the Overall 
Work Plan, including change orders 

 Demonstrate financial ability to pay local cost share of Eligible Project Costs required to 
complete the Project 

 Estimate the percentage completion of the overall project 

 Identify key issues that need to be resolved 

 Photos documenting progress 

COST INFORMATION 

 Provide a list showing all project costs incurred during the time period covered by the report 
by the Grantee and each contractor working on the Project and which of these costs are 
Eligible Project Costs 

 A discussion on how the actual budget is progressing in comparison to the project budget 
included in the Overall Work Plan 

 A list of any changes approved to the budget in accordance with Funding Agreement and a 
revised budget, by task, if changed from latest budget in the Overall Work Plan 

 A discussion of whether there have been any changes to the Grantee’s finance plan for 
payment of the Grantee’s share of Eligible Project Costs 

 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 55 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 29 of 36 

SCHEDULE INFORMATION 

 A schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress 

 A discussion on how the actual schedule is progressing in comparison to the original or last 
reported schedule 

 A list of any changes approved to the Schedule in accordance with Funding Agreement and 
a revised schedule, by task, if changed from latest reported schedule 

 
2. PROJECT COMPLETION REPORT 

Project Completion Reports shall generally use the following format. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – Should include a brief summary of project information and include 
the following items: 

 Brief description of work proposed to be done in the original application 

 Description of actual work completed and any deviations from the work plan identified in the 
Funding Agreement 

REPORTS AND/OR PRODUCTS – The following items should be provided 

 Final Evaluation report 

 Electronic copies of any data collected, not previously submitted 

 As-built drawings 

 Final geodetic survey information 

 Self-Certification that the Project meets the stated goal of the funding agreement (e.g. 100-
year level of flood protection, HMP standard, PL-84-99, etc.) 

 Project photos 

 Discussion of problems that occurred during the work and how those problems were 
resolved 

 A final project schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress 

COSTS AND DISPOSITION OF FUNDS – A list showing: 

 The date each invoice was submitted to State 

 The amount of the invoice 

 The date the check was received 

 The amount of the check (If a check has not been received for the final invoice, then state 
this in this section.) 

 A summary of the payments made by the Grantee for meeting its cost sharing obligations 
under this Funding Agreement. 

 A summary of final funds disbursement including: 

o Labor cost of personnel of agency/ major consultant /sub-consultants. Indicate 
personnel, hours, rates, type of profession, and reason for consultant, i.e., design, 
CEQA work, etc. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 56 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 30 of 36 

o Evaluation cost information, shown by material, equipment, labor costs, and any change 
orders 

o Any other incurred cost detail 

o A statement verifying separate accounting of funding disbursements 

 Summary of project cost including the following items: 

o Accounting of the cost of project expenditure; 

o Include all internal and external costs not previously disclosed; and 

o A discussion of factors that positively or negatively affected the project cost and any 
deviation from the original project cost estimate. 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION – Any relevant additional Information should be included. 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 57 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 31 of 36 

Exhibit G 

STATE AUDIT DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS 

The following provides a list of documents typically required by State Auditors and general guidelines 
for Grantees. List of documents pertains to both State funding and Grantee’s Cost Share, if any, and 
details the documents/records that State Auditors would need to review in the event of this Funding 
Agreement is audited. Grantees should ensure that such records are maintained for three (3) years 
after final disbursement pursuant to this Agreement.  

State Audit Document Requirements 

Internal Controls 

1. Organization chart (e.g., Agency’s overall organization chart and organization chart for the State 
funded Program/Project). 

2. Written internal procedures and flowcharts for the following: 

a) Receipts and deposits 

b) Disbursements 

c) State reimbursement requests 

d) Expenditure tracking of State funds 

e) Guidelines, policy, and procedures on State-funded Program/Project 

3. Audit reports of the Agency internal control structure and/or financial statements within the last two 
years. 

4. Prior audit reports on the State funded Program/Project. 

State Funding: 

1. Original Funding Agreement, any amendment(s), and budget modification documents. 

2. A listing of all grants, loans, or subventions received from the State. 

3. A listing of all other funding sources for the Program/Project. 

Contracts: 

1. All subcontractor and consultant contracts and related or partners’ documents, if applicable. 

2. Contracts between the Agency and member agencies as related to the State-funded 
Program/Project. 

Invoices: 

1. Invoices from vendors and subcontractors for expenditures submitted to the State for payments 
under the Funding Agreement. 

2. Documentation linking subcontractor invoices to State reimbursement, requests, and related 
Funding Agreement budget line items. 

3. Reimbursement requests submitted to the State for the Funding Agreement. 

Cash Documents: 

1. Receipts (copies of warrants) showing payments received from the State. 

2. Deposit slips (or bank statements) showing deposits of the payments received from the State. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 58 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 32 of 36 

3. Cancelled checks or disbursement documents showing payments made to vendors, 
subcontractors, consultants, and/or agents under the grants or loans. 

4. Bank statements showing the deposit of the receipts. 

Accounting Records: 

1. Ledgers showing entries for funding receipts and cash disbursements. 

2. Ledgers showing receipts and cash disbursement entries of other funding sources. 

3. Bridging documents that tie the general ledger to requests for Funding Agreement reimbursement. 

Administration Costs: 

1. Supporting documents showing the calculation of administration costs. 

Personnel: 

1. List of all contractors and Agency staff that worked on the State funded Program/Project. 

2. Payroll records including timesheets for contractor staff and the Agency personnel who provided 
services charged to the program 

Project Files: 

1. All supporting documentation maintained in the project files. 

2. All Funding Agreement related correspondence. 

 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 59 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 33 of 36 

Exhibit H 

INFORMATION NEEDED FOR ESCROW PROCESSING AND CLOSURE 

The Grantee must provide the following documents to the State Project Representative during the 
escrow process. Property acquisition escrow documents must be submitted within the term of this 
Funding Agreement and after a qualified appraisal has been approved. 
 
 Name and Address of Title Company Handling the Escrow 

 Escrow Number 

 Name of Escrow Officer 

 Escrow Officer’s Phone Number 

 Dollar Amount Needed to Close Escrow 

 Legal Description of Property Being Acquired 

 Assessor’s Parcel Number(s) of Property Being Acquired 

 Copy of Title Insurance Report 

 Entity Taking Title as Named Insured on Title Insurance Policy 

 Copy of Escrow Instructions in Draft Form Prior to Recording for Review Purposes 

 Copy of Final Escrow Instructions 

 Verification that all Encumbrances (Liens, Back Taxes, and Similar Obligations) have been 
Cleared Prior to Recording the Deed to Transfer Title 

 Copy of Deed for Review Purposes Prior to Recording 

 Copy of Deed as Recorded in County Recorder’s Office 

 Copy of Escrow Closure Notice  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 60 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 34 of 36 

Exhibit I 

APPRAISAL SPECIFICATIONS 

For property acquisitions funded this Funding Agreement, the Grantee must submit an appraisal for 
review and approval by the Department of General Services or DWR’s Real Estate Branch prior to 
reimbursement or depositing State funds into an escrow account. All appraisal reports, regardless of 
report format, must include all applicable Appraisal Specifications below. Appraisals for a total 
compensation of $150,000 or more shall be reported as a Self-Contained Appraisal Report. 
Appraisals for a total compensation of less than $150,000 may be reported as a Summary Appraisal 
Report, which includes all information necessary to arrive at the appraiser’s conclusion. Appraisal 
Specifications 14, 16, 21, 23-25, and 28 shall be narrative analysis regardless of the reporting format.   

1. Title page with sufficient identification of appraisal assignment. 

2. Letter of transmittal summarizing important assumptions and conclusions, value estimate, date of 
value and date of report. 

3. Table of contents. 

4. Assumptions and Limiting Conditions, Extraordinary Assumptions, and Hypothetical Conditions as 
needed. 

5. Description of the scope of work, including the extent of data collection and limitations, if any, in 
obtaining relevant data. 

6. Definition of Fair Market Value, as defined by Code of Civil Procedure, section 1263.320. 

7. Photographs of subject property and comparable data, including significant physical features and 
the interior of structural improvements, if applicable.  

8. Copies of Tax Assessor’s plat map with the subject marked along with all contiguous assessor’s 
parcels that depict the ownership. 

9. A legal description of the subject property, if available. 

10. For large, remote or inaccessible parcels, provide aerial photographs or topographical maps 
depicting the subject boundaries. 

11. Three-year subject property history, including sales, listings, leases, options, zoning, applications 
for permits, or other documents or facts that might indicate or affect use or value. 

12. Discussion of any current Agreement of Sale, option, or listing of subject property. This issue 
required increased diligence since state agencies often utilize non-profit organizations to quickly 
acquire sensitive-habitat parcels using Option Agreements. However, due to confidentiality 
clauses, the terms of the Option are often not disclosed to the state. If the appraiser discovers 
evidence of an Option or the possible existence of an Option, and the terms cannot be disclosed 
due to a confidentiality clause, then the appraiser is to cease work and contact the client. 

13. Regional, area, and neighborhood analyses. This information may be presented in a summary 
format. 

14. Market conditions and trends including identification of the relevant market area, a discussion of 
supply and demand within the relevant market area, and a discussion of the relevant market 
factors impacting demand for site acquisition and leasing within the relevant market area. This 
information may be presented in a summary format. 

15. Discussion of subject land/site characteristics (size, topography, current use, elevations, zoning 
and land use issues, development entitlements, General Plan designation, utilities, offsite 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 61 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 35 of 36 

improvements, access, land features such as levees and creeks, offsite improvements, 
easements and encumbrances, covenants, conditions and restrictions, flood and earthquake 
information, toxic hazards, water rights, mineral rights, toxic hazards, taxes and assessments, 
etc.). 

16. Description of subject improvements including all structures, square footage, physical age, type of 
construction, quality of construction, condition of improvements and/or identification of any 
permanent plantings. Discussion of construction cost methodology, costs included and excluded, 
accrued depreciation from all causes, remaining economic life, items of deferred maintenance and 
cost to cure, and incurable items. Construction cost data must include cost data source, date of 
estimate or date of publication of cost manual, section and page reference of cost manual, copies 
of cost estimate if provided from another source, replacement or reproduction cost method used, 
and supporting calculations including worksheets or spreadsheets. 

17. Subject property leasing and operating cost history, including all items of income and expense. 

18. Analysis and conclusion of the larger parcel for partial taking appraisals. For partial taking 
appraisals, Appraisal Specifications generally apply to the larger parcel rather than an ownership 
where the larger parcel is not the entire ownership. 

19. Include a copy of a recent preliminary title report (within the past year) as an appraisal exhibit. 
Discuss the title exceptions and analyze the effect of title exceptions on fair market value.   

20. For appraisals of partial takings or easements, a detailed description of the taking or easement 
area including surface features and topography, easements, encumbrances or improvements 
including levees within the subject partial take or easement, and whether the take area is 
characteristic of the larger parcel. Any characteristics of the taking area, including existing pre-
project levees that render the take area different from the larger parcel must be addressed in the 
valuation. 

21. Opinion of highest and best use for the subject property, based on an in depth analysis supporting 
the concluded use which includes the detail required by the complexity of the analysis. Such 
support typically requires a discussion of the four criteria of tests utilized to determine the highest 
and best use of a property. If alternative feasible uses exist, explain and support market, 
development, cash flow, and risk factors leading to an ultimate highest and best use decision.  

22. All approaches to market value applicable to the property type and in the subject market. Explain 
and support the exclusion of any usual approaches to value. 

23. Map(s) showing all comparable properties in relation to the subject property. 

24. Photographs and plat maps of comparable properties. 

25. In depth discussion of comparable properties, similarities and differences compared to the subject, 
adjustments to the comparable data, and discussion of the reliability and credibility of the data as 
it relates to the indicated subject property value. Improved comparable sales which are used to 
compare to vacant land subject properties must include an allocation between land and 
improvements, using methodology similar to methodology used in item 16 above to estimate 
improvement value when possible, with an explanation of the methodology used.  

26. Comparable data sheets.   

a) For sales, include information on grantor/grantee, sale/recordation dates, listed or asking price 
as of the date of sale, highest and best use, financing, conditions of sale, buyer motivation, 
sufficient location information (street address, post mile, and/or distance from local landmarks 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 62 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 36 of 36 

such as bridges, road intersections, structures, etc.), land/site characteristics, improvements, 
source of any allocation of sale price between land and improvements, and confirming source.   

b) For listings, also include marketing time from list date to effective date of the appraisal, original 
list price, changes in list price, broker feedback, if available.   

c) For leases, include significant information such as lessor/lessee, lease date and term, type of 
lease, rent and escalation, expenses, size of space leased, tenant improvement allowance, 
concessions, use restrictions, options, and confirming source.  When comparing improved 
sales to a vacant land subject, the contributory value of the improvements must be segregated 
from the land value.  

27. For appraisals of easements, a before and after analysis of the burden of the easement on the 
fee, with attention to how the easement affects highest and best use in the after condition. An 
Easement Valuation Matrix or generalized easement valuation references may be used ONLY as 
a reference for a secondary basis of value. 

28. For partial taking and easement appraisals, valuation of the remainder in the after condition and 
analysis and identification of any change in highest and best use or other characteristics in the 
after condition, to establish severance damages to the remainder in the after condition, and a 
discussion of special and general benefits, and cost to cure damages or construction contract 
work. 

29. There are occasions where properties involve water rights, minerals, or salable timber that require 
separate valuations. If an appraisal assignment includes water rights, minerals, or merchantable 
timber that requires separate valuation, the valuation of the water rights, minerals, or 
merchantable timber must be completed by a credentialed subject matter specialist.   

30. For partial taking and easement appraisals, presentation of the valuation in California partial 
taking acquisition required format.  

31. Implied dedication statement. 

32. Reconciliation and final value estimate.  Include analysis and comparison of the comparable sales 
to the subject, and explain and support conclusions reached. 

33. Discussion of any departures taken in the development of the appraisal. 

34. Signed Certification consistent with the language found in Uniform Standards of Professional 
Appraisal Practice. 

35. If applicable, in addition to the above, appraisals of telecommunication sites must also provide: 

a) A discussion of market conditions and trends including identification of the relevant market, a 
discussion of supply and demand within the relevant market area and a discussion of the 
relevant market factors impacting demand for site acquisition and leasing within the relevant 
market area. 

b) An analysis of other (ground and vault) leases comparable to subject property.  Factors to be 
discussed in the analysis include the latitude, longitude, type of tower, tower height, number of 
rack spaces, number of racks occupied, placement of racks, power source and adequacy, back-
up power, vault and site improvements description and location on site, other utilities; access, 
and road maintenance costs. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 63 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 37 of 36 

Exhibit J 
ADVANCE PAYMENT 

Water Code section 13198.4(c) authorizes advanced payment by the State for grantees that 
demonstrate cash flow issues. A project may receive an advanced payment of twenty-five (25) 
percent of its grant award; the remaining seventy-five (75) percent of the grant award will be 
reimbursed in arrears after the advanced funds have been fully expended. Within ninety (90) calendar 
days of execution of the Grant Agreement, the Grantee may provide the State an Advanced Payment 
Request. Advanced Payment Requests received ninety-one (91) calendar days after the execution of 
this Agreement will not be eligible to receive an advanced payment. The Advanced Payment Request 
shall contain the following: 

A. If the Grantee is requesting the advanced payment, the request(s) shall include: 

1. Descriptive information of each project with an update on project status 

2. Description and documentation of the cash flow issues the Grantee has that requires funds 
to be advanced 

3. The names of the entities that will receive the funding for each project 

4. A detailed Funding Plan which includes how the advanced payment will be expended (in 
terms of workplan, budget, and schedule) within the timeframe agreed upon by DWR and the 
Grantee. The Funding Plan must clearly identify the total budget (at Budget Category Level) 
for each project clearly showing the portion of advanced payment and reimbursement funds. 

5. Any other information that DWR may deem necessary 

B. Upon review and approval of the Advanced Payment Request, DWR may authorize payment of 
the requested amount or a lesser amount for those entities that have requested advanced funds. 
Based on the project’s Funding Plan and other considerations, DWR may develop a 
“Disbursement Schedule,” to disburse funds in installments. This Disbursement Schedule may 
change based on the project’s ongoing compliance with the Advanced Payment requirements 
and the project’s cash flow needs. 

C. Once DWR authorizes the Advanced Payment Request, the Grantee shall submit Advanced 
Payment Invoice(s) for the initial amount based on the “Disbursement Schedule” containing the 
request for each project requesting advanced funds, to the State with signature and date of the 
Grantee’s Project Representative, as indicated in Paragraph 18, “Project Representative.” The 
Grantee shall be responsible for the timely distribution of the advanced funds. The Advanced 
Payment Invoice(s) shall be submitted on forms provided by the State and shall meet the 
following format requirements: 

1. Invoice shall contain the date of the invoice, the time period covered by the invoice, and the 
total amount due. 

2. Invoice shall be itemized based on the budget categories specified in Exhibit B, “Budget.” 

3. The State Project Manager will notify the Grantee, in a timely manner, when, upon review of 
an Advance Payment Invoice, the State determines that any portion or portions of the costs 
claimed are not eligible costs. The Grantee may, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date 
of receipt of such notice, submit additional documentation to cure such deficiency(ies). The 
Grantee may, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of receipt of such notice, submit 
additional documentation to cure such deficiency(ies). If costs are not consistent with the 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 64 of 111



Grant Agreement No. 4600014884 
Page 38 of 36 

tasks in Exhibit A, the State will reject the claim and remove them from the Accountability 
Report. 

4. On a quarterly basis, the Grantee will submit an Accountability Report to the State that 
demonstrates how actual expenditures compare with the scheduled budget. The 
Accountability Report shall include the following information: 

i. An itemization of how advanced funds have been spent to-date (Expenditure Report), 
including documentation that supports the disbursements (e.g., contractor invoices, 
receipts, personnel hours, etc.). Accountability Reports shall be itemized based on the 
budget categories (i.e., tasks) specified in Exhibit B. 

ii. An updated Accountability Report including an updated Funding Plan that depicts how 
the remaining advanced funds will be expended and the activities and deliverables 
associated with the advanced funds within the timeframe agreed upon by DWR and the 
Grantee when the advanced payment request was approved. 

iii. Documentation that the funds were placed in a non-interest bearing account, including 
the dates of deposits and withdrawals from that account. 

iv. Proof of distribution of advanced funds, if applicable. 

D. Once the Grantee has spent all advanced funds in a budget category, then the method of 
payment will revert to the reimbursement process for that budget category specified in Paragraph 
9, “Method of Payment.” 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 65 of 111



CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT 

NextGen Engineering, Inc. 

This Consulting Services Contract (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 21st day 
of January, 2024, by and between the VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT, a California special 
district (“District”), and NextGen Engineering, Inc., a California corporation (“Consultant”). 

The General Manager, or his authorized representative(s), shall administer this Agreement for the 
District. 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. Retention of Consultant. District hereby retains Consultant to perform professional
services such as but not limited to engineering services (the “Scope of Work”), as provided further in 
specific “Task Orders” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference and signed by the parties 
hereto. All work under this Agreement shall be completed within the time provided in the Time 
Schedule set forth in the applicable Task Order. 

2. Term. Unless earlier terminated in accordance with paragraph 10, below, this
Agreement shall continue from the date hereof until January 1, 2025. 

3. Compensation. Provided Consultant is not in default under this Agreement, payment
shall be made on all undisputed amounts in accordance with the “Fees and Payment” schedule 
included in the Task Order. Any other provision of this Agreement notwithstanding, in no event 
shall District be liable to pay for services rendered, products provided, and expenses incurred by 
Consultant under the terms of this Agreement for any amount in excess of the maximum amount 
shown on the applicable Task Order (the “Maximum Fee”). Consultant acknowledges that District 
is not obligated to execute an agreement or an amendment for any further services and that any 
services performed by Consultant beyond those specifically described in this Agreement or any 
Task Orders are performed at Consultant’s risk and without authorization under this Agreement.  

4. Fees. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, District shall
compensate Consultant at the hourly rates shown on Exhibit B, but the amounts paid for any project 
shall not exceed the amount of Fee shown on the applicable Task Order, to complete all project work 
specified.  Consultant agrees to provide extra services at the rates stipulated in Exhibit B. Such fees 
for extra services will be paid only when the work is authorized in writing by the General Manager in 
advance of the performance of the extra services. Such fees for extra services shall not exceed $10,000 
without entering into a supplemental agreement. 

5. Payments. Unless an alternate payment process is specified in the applicable Task
Order, progress payments will be made within thirty (30) days following presentation of an invoice 
showing personnel time records for work completed at the rates shown in Exhibit B, which invoices 
may be submitted to District monthly.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is hereby acknowledged and 
agreed that the payment of Consultant’s invoices for work that is to be paid for or reimbursed to the 
District through funds received from the California Department of Water Resources or other 
governmental agency (“DWR”) shall be conditioned upon the District receiving approval of such 
payment or reimbursement by DWR, and payment shall be made by the District to Consultant within 
thirty (30) days thereafter.     

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 66 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 2 
 

  

6. Consultant Qualifications. Consultant represents and warrants to District that it has 
all professional resources, and other permits and licenses required to undertake the work contemplated 
by this Agreement. Consultant represents and warrants to District that Consultant (i) has thoroughly 
investigated and considered the Scope of Work to be performed, (ii) has carefully considered how the 
services should be performed, and (iii) understands the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attendant 
to the performance of the services under this Agreement. If the services hereunder involve work upon 
any site, Consultant warrants that Consultant has or will investigate the site and is or will be fully 
acquainted with the conditions there existing, prior to commencement of services set forth in this 
Agreement. In the event Consultant discovers any latent or unknown conditions that will materially 
affect the performance of the services set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall immediately notify 
District of that fact and may not proceed except as Consultant’s own risk until written instructions are 
received from District. 

 
7. Consultant Personnel. All key personnel identified in Exhibit A will be dedicated 

by Consultant to perform the services under this Agreement. The parties intend that all key 
personnel be engaged to perform their specialty for all services required by this Agreement and 
that Consultant shall retain all key personnel for the term of this Agreement. If Consultant must 
replace any of its key personnel, it shall notify the General Manager in writing of the changes. No 
such replacement shall be made until the replacement is approved by the General Manager, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The General Manager shall respond to the 
Consultant’s written notice of replacement within fifteen (15) days of receipt. If the General 
Manager does not respond within that time, the listed replacement personnel shall be deemed 
approved. If during the term of this Agreement, the General Manager determines that the 
performance of approved key personnel is not acceptable, he shall in his sole and absolute 
discretion either (a) give Consultant a reasonable period of time to correct the performance or (b) 
require Consultant to replace the personnel as soon as practicable. 

 
8. Non-Assignability. This Agreement is for the professional services of Consultant and 

is non-assignable by Consultant without prior written consent of District, except that Consultant may 
assign money due or which will accrue to Consultant under this Agreement. If given written notice, 
District will recognize such assignment to the extent permitted by law, but any assignment of money 
shall be subject to all proper setoffs and withholdings in favor of District and to all deductions 
provided for in this Agreement. All money withheld, whether assigned or not, shall be subject to being 
used by District for completion of the work, should Consultant be in default hereunder.  

 
9. Relationship of Parties. The parties agree that the status of Consultant shall be that 

of an independent contractor retained on a contractual basis to perform professional or technical 
services for limited periods of time. It is not intended, nor shall it be construed, that a Consultant 
or its employees are employees or officers of the District for any purpose whatsoever. The 
Consultant shall be solely responsible for determining the method, details and means of performing 
the services hereunder. Neither Consultant, nor any partner, agent, or employee of Consultant, has 
authority to enter into contracts that bind District or create obligations on the part of District 
without the prior written authorization of District. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that 
Consultant’s employees will not be eligible for any District employee benefits and, to the extent 
Consultant’s employees otherwise would be eligible for any District employee benefits but for the 
express terms of this Agreement, Consultant (on behalf of itself and its employees) hereby 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 67 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 3 
 

  

expressly declines to participate in such District employee benefits.  Consultant shall have full 
responsibility for applicable withholding taxes for all compensation paid to Consultant, its 
partners, agents or its employees under this Agreement, and for compliance with all applicable 
labor and employment requirements with respect to Consultant’s self-employment, sole 
proprietorship or other form of business organization, and Consultant’s partners, agents and 
employees, including state worker’s compensation insurance coverage requirements and any US 
immigration visa requirements. 

 
10. Confidential Information. Consultant acknowledges and accepts that, in 

performance of all work under the terms of this Agreement, Consultant may have access to 
Proprietary Data or confidential information that may be owned or controlled by District, and that 
the disclosure of such Proprietary Data or information may be damaging to District or third parties. 
Consultant agrees that all Proprietary Data or confidential information provided or otherwise 
disclosed by District to Consultant shall be held in confidence and used only in the performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement. Consultant shall exercise the same standard of care to 
protect such Proprietary Data and information as a reasonably prudent consultant would to protect 
its own proprietary or confidential data. “Proprietary Data” shall mean any materials or 
information which are designated or marked “Proprietary” or “Confidential” and provided to or 
made available to Consultant by District. Such Proprietary Data may be in hardcopy, printed, 
digital or electronic format. Except as expressly provided by the terms of this Agreement, 
Consultant agrees that it shall not use, disseminate, transmit, license, sublicense, assign, lease, 
release, publish, post on the internet, transfer, sell, permit access to, distribute, allow interactive 
rights to, or otherwise make available the Proprietary Data or confidential information or any part 
thereof to any other person, party or entity in any form or media for any purpose other than 
performing its obligations under this Agreement.  Consultant further acknowledges that by 
providing this Proprietary Data or confidential information, District is not granting to Consultant 
any right or license to use such data except as provided in this Agreement. Consultant further 
agrees not to disclose or distribute to any other party, in whole or in part, the Proprietary Data or 
confidential information without written authorization from the General Manager. Consultant 
acknowledges and understands that the Proprietary Data may not be completely free of errors. 
Proprietary Data should be used for reference only and should not be relied upon in any other way, 
and Consultant is hereby advised to independently verify all work performed in reliance upon the 
Proprietary Data.  

 
11. Termination. District retains the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason, or 

for no reason, at any time by delivering to Consultant ten (10) days’ notice of termination. If this 
Agreement is terminated by District, Consultant shall be compensated for, and such compensation 
shall be limited to: (1) the sum of the amounts contained in invoices which it has submitted and 
which have been approved by District; (2) the reasonable value to District of the work which 
Consultant performed prior to the date of the termination notice, but which had not yet been 
invoiced; and (3) the cost of any work that is needed to accomplish an orderly termination of the 
work and is approved in writing by the General Manager.  In no event shall such payment exceed 
the Maximum Fee. In the event that this Agreement is terminated by District for cause, Consultant 
will provide all assistance reasonably requested by District in connection with the efficient and 
orderly transition of performance of the services by Consultant to District or any third party 
designated by District, at no cost to District. In the event that this Agreement is terminated by 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 68 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 4 
 

  

District for convenience, Consultant will provide all assistance reasonably requested by District in 
connection with the efficient and orderly transition of performance of the services by Consultant 
to District or any third party designated by District, at reasonable time and material rates to be 
agreed upon by the parties.  Upon termination of this Agreement by District, Consultant shall not 
have any claim against District by reason of such termination or by reason of any act incidental to 
termination, except for compensation for work performed as described in this Agreement. 

 
12. Documents and Records. Upon the completion of each Task Order, expiration or 

termination of this Agreement, District shall be entitled to immediate possession of, and Consultant 
shall furnish, on request and without additional cost to District, all computations, plans, 
correspondence, computer disks, and other pertinent data gathered or computed by Consultant 
(including drafts and incomplete documents) pursuant to its obligations hereunder prior to such 
termination.  Neither the designs nor any of the documents prepared pursuant to this Agreement or 
any modifications thereof shall be copyrighted by Consultant or by District. Consultant may retain 
copies of said original documents for Consultant’s files. Any substantive modification of the 
documents by District or any use of the completed documents for other projects or any use of 
uncompleted documents, without specific written verification by Consultant, will be at District’s sole 
risk and without liability or legal exposure to Consultant. Records of Consultant’s accounts between 
District and Consultant shall be kept on a generally recognized accounting basis. Consultant shall 
maintain, during the term of this Agreement and for three (3) years thereafter, all other records related 
to any work performed hereunder. All records shall be available to District during reasonable business 
hours. 

 
13. Conflicts of Interest. Consultant agrees that it will not engage in any transaction, 

activity or conduct that would result in a conflict of interest under this Agreement.  During the term 
of this Agreement, Consultant shall not hire personnel currently employed by District to perform any 
work under this Agreement. Consultant shall promptly inform District of any contract, arrangement, 
or interest that Consultant may enter or have during the performance of this Agreement that might 
appear to conflict with District’s interests. This includes contracts and arrangements with 
manufacturers, suppliers, contractors, or other clients whose interests might be served by the work 
performed under this Agreement. Consultant shall take such measures as are necessary in the 
performance of this Agreement to prevent actual conflicts of interest. District, in its sole discretion, 
shall determine the existence of a conflict of interest and may terminate this Agreement in the 
event such a conflict exists after it has given Consultant written notice which describes the conflict. 

 
14. Insurance. Consultant shall, at Consultant’s sole cost and expense and throughout the 

term of this Agreement and any extensions thereof, carry adequate insurance as determined by District 
to protect Consultant from claims under the Worker’s Compensation Acts. Consultant shall also, at 
Consultant’s sole cost and expense and throughout the term of this Agreement and any extensions 
thereof, carry: (a) a general personal injury and property damage liability insurance policy (including 
coverage for products and contractual obligations) and (b) an automobile liability insurance policy. 
Each of the foregoing insurance policies shall provide liability limits of not less than $1,000,000 per 
policy for the injury or death of a person or persons and property damage in any one accident or an 
annual aggregate minimum of $1,000,000 per policy. Consultant shall notify District immediately if 
Consultant’s general aggregate of insurance is exceeded by valid litigated claims, and then additional 
levels of insurance must be purchased to maintain the above stated requirements. The insurance 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 69 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 5 
 

  

provided by the Consultant shall be primary and noncontributory. Each type of insurance mentioned 
herein shall be written by a financially responsible company or companies authorized to do business 
in the State of California. Consultant agrees to provide District with copies of certificates of all 
policies written and each shall contain an endorsement that they are not subject to cancellation without 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice, by first class mail, being given to District by the insurance 
company or companies writing such insurance, except that ten (10) days’ notice may be given if 
cancellation is due to nonpayment of premiums.  Consultant agrees to name the VENTURA RIVER 
WATER DISTRICT as an additional insured as its interests may appear on Consultant’s general and 
automobile liability insurance policies. 

 
 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 

District. At the option of District, either: (i) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductible or 
self-insured retentions as respects District, its officials, and employees; or (ii) Consultant shall procure 
a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense 
expenses. 

 
15. Indemnification. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Consultant agrees to 

indemnify and defend District and its officers, officials, agents employees and volunteers from any 
and all claims, demands, costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees) or liability that, directly or 
indirectly, arise out of, pertain to, or relate to (i) the breach of this Agreement by Consultant; or (ii) 
the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, provided, that this indemnity does 
not apply to liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other 
loss, arising from the sole negligence, willful misconduct or defects in design furnished by District to 
Consultant, or arising from the active negligence of District.  Except as provided in the foregoing 
sentence, Consultant will indemnify and defend District notwithstanding any alleged or actual passive 
negligence of District which may have contributed to the claims, demands, costs or liability. 
Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no way lessen or limit the 
liability of Consultant under the terms of this indemnification obligation. The terms of this 
paragraph 15 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

 
16. Dispute Resolution. Disputes arising under or related to the performance of this 

Agreement shall be resolved by arbitration unless District and Consultant agree in writing, after the 
dispute has arisen, to waive arbitration and to have the claim or dispute litigated in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. Arbitration shall be pursuant to Chapter 3 (Sections 301-393, inclusive) of 
Division 2 of Title 1 of the California Code of Regulations except that references therein to the “State 
Contract Act” shall be construed to mean “applicable law”, “Contractor” shall be construed to mean 
“Consultant”, and “Public District” or “Department” shall be construed to mean “District”.  The 
arbitration decision shall be decided under and in accordance with California law, supported by 
substantial evidence and, in writing, contain the basis for the decision, findings of fact, and 
conclusions of law. 

 
 Arbitration shall be initiated by a Demand for Arbitration made in compliance with 

the requirements of said Subchapter 3. A Demand for Arbitration by Consultant shall be made not 
later than 180 calendar days after the date of the final written decision of District on the dispute. 
Where either party makes an election to use the Simplified Claims Procedure provided under Sections 
375-381 of Division 2 of Title 1 of the California Code of Regulations, the parties may mutually agree 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 70 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 6 
 

  

to waive representation by Counsel.  Prior to Demand for Arbitration, Consultant shall exhaust its 
administrative remedies by attempting to resolve the dispute with the General Manager. 

 
17. Consultant’s Authority to Execute. The person executing this Agreement on behalf 

of Consultant warrants that (i) Consultant is a duly organized, validly existing corporation under the 
laws of the State of California, (ii) he/she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant, and (iii) entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other 
agreement to which Consultant is bound. 

 
18. Compliance with Laws. All the services performed under this Agreement by 

Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and codes of the United States 
and State of California, including, but not limited to, Prevailing Wage laws, and with the 
ordinances, rules, and regulations of the District, as amended. 

 
19. Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and 

shall be deemed duly given (a) on the date of delivery if delivered personally, or if by facsimile, 
upon written confirmation of receipt by facsimile, (b) on the first business day following the date 
of dispatch if delivered by a recognized next-day courier service or (c) on the earlier of confirmed 
receipt or the third business day following the date of mailing if delivered by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.  All notices hereunder shall be delivered to the 
addresses set forth below, or pursuant to such other instructions as may be designated in writing 
by the party to receive such notice: 
 
  District: VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 
    409 Old Baldwin Road 
    Ojai, CA  93023 

Attention: General Manager 
 
  Consultant: NextGen Engineering, Inc. 
    5142 E. Holmes St. 
                                                Tucson, Az 85711 
                                                805-798-7664 
                                                Attention: William O’Brien, Principal Engineer  
 

20. Exhibits. All exhibits identified in this Agreement are incorporated herein by this 
reference. In the event of any conflicts between the language of this Agreement and the exhibits, 
the language of the Agreement shall control.  

 
21. No Waiver. In no event shall any action by a party constitute or be construed to be 

a waiver by that party of any breach of covenant or default which may then exist on the part of the 
other party. A party’s action or inaction when any such breach or default shall exist shall not impair 
or prejudice any right or remedy available to that party with respect to such breach or default; and 
no assent, expressed or implied, to any breach of any one or more covenants, provisions or 
conditions of the Agreement shall be deemed or taken to be a waiver of any other breach.  

 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 71 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 7 
 

  

22. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, the By-Laws, Rules and Regulations of the 
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT, and the ordinances enacted or promulgated pursuant to 
the Rules and Regulations, including any amendments. Venue for any legal action relating to this 
Agreement shall lie exclusively in any State court sitting in the County of Ventura.  

 
23. No Discrimination in Employment. In connection with the performance of 

services under this Agreement, Consultant agrees not to refuse to hire, discharge, promote or 
demote, or to discriminate in matters of compensation against any person otherwise qualified, 
solely because of race, color, religion, national origin, gender, age, military status, sexual 
orientation, marital status, or physical or mental disability. 

 
24. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement (including the attached 

Exhibits) is the complete integration of all understandings between the parties. No prior or 
contemporaneous addition, deletion, or other modification related to the subject matter herein shall 
have any force or effect, unless embodied in this Agreement in writing. No subsequent novation, 
renewal, addition, deletion, or other amendment shall have any force or effect unless embodied in 
a written amendment to this Agreement properly executed by the parties. This Agreement and any 
amendments to it shall be binding upon the parties and their successors and assigns. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 

 
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT NextGen Engineering, Inc. 

  
By: _______________________________ By: ____________________________ 
 Bruce Kuebler, Board President Name: William D. O’Brien 
  Title: Principal Engineer, President 
 Taxpayer I.D. No.  46-4949505 
By:_______________________________ 
 Alma Quezada, General Manager 
 
Approved as to form:  
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Stuart Nielson, District Legal Counsel 
  

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 72 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 8 
 

  

EXHIBIT A 
 

KEY PERSONNEL 
 

 
William O’Brien, PE, Principal Civil Engineer 
 
Samantha Hewet, Planner, Project Coordinator 
 
Fred Ponce, CAD and field inspector 
  

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 73 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 9 
 

  

EXHIBIT B 
 

HOURLY RATES 
 

Effective _1/1/23__ to _3/1/24__  

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 74 of 111



VRWD and NextGen Agreement 
Page 10 
 

  

Task Order #1 
 

Title: Engineering Design For Consolidation of Casitas MWC and VRWD 
 

Scope of Work: 
Work done to move toward the 90% design of the CMWC system, a combined agency CAD file 

with both VRWD and CMWDC shown with points of potential connection, completed field survey 

of connection points and trees along Hwy 33, CMWC well details, survey and staking reference 

sheet, and the proposal for the Preliminary Engineering Report that includes subcontractors for 

Geotechnical services, additional field survey, Easement Analysis, Potholing, and an Arborist. 

This includes design work, CAD files, backup reference files, all that will benefit NV5 - the 

designated Engineer for consolidation. Files will be provided to a VRWD Dropbox site.  

 

Schedule: 

Work to be completed and handed over to VRWD and their consultants NV5 by October 28, 

2023. Final Invoice to be delivered before November 27, 2023.  

 

Fees and Payment: 

$16,563.75 – see NextGen invoice #2023-126, subject to DWR approval and reimbursement. 

 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 75 of 111



 

DATE: February 21, 2024  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Emily Minteer, Office Manager & Alma Quezada, P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW 
 
SUMMARY 

The annual mid-year budget review provides the opportunity to gauge how revenues and 
expenses are tracking, the potential need for future rate adjustments and assists to 
develop next year’s budget. This report provides a review of the FY 2023-24 budget, year-
to-date status of revenues and expenditures as of December 31, 2023 (midway through 
the fiscal year). 

Water Sales Revenues are currently approximately 3% under budget. Total expenses are 
projected at 76% of the budget for the year, or 24% under budget. Some expenses are 
over budget and are described below. A budget transfer request is recommended to 
prevent over-expenditure in some expense categories.  

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The Office Manager and General Manager recommend that the Board: 

1. Review and comment on the mid-year budget update. 
2. Approve budget transfer #2 in the amount of $77,000. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Revenue 

  
 YTD Actual 
(12/31/23)  

 FY 24 
Budgeted 
Amount  

 
Remaining/(Over)  

 Projected 
% Over or 

Under  

Revenues         
WATER SALES  $1,427,934  $2,500,000   $1,072,066 114% 
SERVICE INSTALLATION  $(594)  $1,500  $2,094 -79% 
DELINQUENT FEES  $11,795  $16,800  $5,005 140% 
CONSERVATION 
PENALTY FEES 

 $51,210  $30,000  $(21,210) 341% 

Total Revenues  $1,490,345  $2,548,300   $1,057,955 117% 
Table 1: Revenue 

Water sales revenue is 3% below the budgeted amount and in line with seasonal 
projections. Water Sales are expected to align with budget forecasts by the end of the 
fiscal year. There are two service installations planned this year.  
 
A slight increase in delinquent fees is being accrued by customers at a rate of $35 a 
month per customer. When water budgets were increased to 100% of allocation in April 
2023, a conservative approach in budgeting for conservation penalty fees was adopted. 
Customers are still exceeding their monthly water budgets as shown above in Table 1%. 
The penalty for exceeding water budgets is currently $5 per unit of water. 
 

Agenda Packet - Page 76 of 111



 
Mid-Year Budget Review  
Page 2 of 7 

 
 YTD Actual 
(12/31/23)  

 FY 24 
Budgeted 
Amount  

 
Remaining/(Over)  

 Projected 
% Over or 
Under  

Other Revenue/(Expense)         

PROPERTY TAXES  $31,572   $60,000   $28,428  105% 

INTEREST INCOME  $10,103   $8,000   $(2,103) 253% 

CAPACITY CHARGE  $ -     $ -     $ -      

OTHER REVENUE  $28,977   $15,000   $ (13,977) 386% 

GRANT REVENUE  $ -     $100,000   $100,000  0% 

SRF Loan Process  $ -     $ -     $ -      

Total Other Income 
(Expense) 

 $70,652   $183,000   $112,348    

Table 2: Other Revenue/Expenses 

Interest Income is surpassing budget predictions and attributed to the elevated interest 
rates on the District's LAIF account. Additionally, Other Revenue from the District's 
investment CDs is experiencing an uptick, reflecting the market's favorable high interest 
rates. The District remains engaged with the VRIF grant and anticipates reimbursement, 
albeit with an estimated turnaround time of 3-4 months. No capacity charges are projected 
to be paid to the District this year, nor are there expectations of receiving SRF Loan 
Proceeds. 
 
General & Administrative Expenses:  

 
YTD 

Actual 
(12/31/23) 

FY 24 
Budgeted 
Amount 

Remaining/ 
(Over) 

Projected 
% Over or 

Under 
UTILITIES  $ 66,004   $154,000   $ 87,996  103% 

TELEPHONE & INTERNET  $ 7,249   $15,000   $ 7,751  97% 

LAFCO FEES  $ 988   $ 2,000   $ 1,012  99% 

MISC/TAX/LICENSE/BANK CHARGES  $ 4,177   $ 16,000   $11,823  52% 

MEMBERSHIP, DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS  $ 11,008   $ 25,000   $ 13,992  88% 

PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION  $ 5,313   $ 13,900   $ 8,587  76% 

DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION  $ 167   $ 5,000   $ 4,833  7% 

SECURITY  $ 1,734   $ 5,000   $ 3,266  69% 

POSTAGE  $ 5,456   $13,000   $ 7,544  84% 

OFFICE SUPPLIES  $ 9,646   $ 21,000   $ 11,354  92% 

V. RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES  $ 15,028   $ 50,000   $ 34,972  60% 

BAD DEBT EXPENSE  $  -     $ 4,000   $ 4,000  0% 

CONSERVATION  $ 28,181   $100,000   $ 71,819  56% 

Total General & Administrative 
Expenses 

 $ 54,951   $423,900   $268,949  73% 

Table 3: General & Administrative Expenses 

Agenda Packet - Page 77 of 111



 
Mid-Year Budget Review  
Page 3 of 7 

Table 3 shows the majority of the general and administrative expenses are expected to 
be within budget this fiscal year.  
 
Utilities are slightly higher due to a larger than anticipated Southern California Electric 
rate increase. A budget adjustment is requested to prevent over expenditure in this 
expense category. Budget Transfer #2 will add $20,000 making the revised Utility budget 
$174,000. 
 
Operating Expenses:  

   YTD 
Actual 

(12/31/23)  

 FY 24 
Budgeted 
Amount  

 Remaining/ 
(Over)  

 Projected % 
Over or 
Under  

WATER PURCHASES & 
CASITAS BASE FEES 

$58,053 $185,000 $126,947 63% 

UVRGA PUMP FEE $62,860 $126,000 $63,140 100% 
SALARIES + PTO & SICK 
ACCRUAL 

$431,610 $897,000 $465,390 96% 

SOCIAL SECURITY & 
MEDICARE 

$34,369 $64,000 $29,631 107% 

STATE PAYROLL TAXES (SUI, 
ETT) 

$0 $1,200 $1,200 0% 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

$59,143 $127,000 $67,857 93% 

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE $69,519 $135,000 $65,481 103% 
WORKER'S COMPENSATION 
INSURANCE 

$12,080 $21,000 $8,920 115% 

LIABILITY INSURANCE $40,951 $83,000 $42,049 99% 
BOARD MEMBER 
COMPENSATION 

$9,459 $24,000 $14,541 79% 

EMERGENCY REPAIR $41,303 $120,000 $78,697 69% 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
(Audit, Engr,Draft) 

$12,117 $75,200 $63,083 32% 

FUEL $6,379 $24,000 $17,621 53% 
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE $1,194 $10,000 $8,806 24% 
OFFICE MAINTENANCE $25,291 $70,000 $44,709 72% 
FIELD EQUIPMENT 
MAINTENANCE 

$52,898 $102,000 $49,102 104% 

METER REPLACEMENT & 
MAINTENANCE 

$61,617 $78,000 $16,383 158% 

WATER SYSTEM 
MAINTENANCE 

$43,132 $160,000 $116,868 54% 

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL $7,572 $35,000 $27,428 43% 
DEPRECIATION $0 $350,000 $350,000 0% 
Total Operating Expenses $1,029,547 $2,687,400 $1,657,853 77% 

Table 4: Operating Expenses 

  

Agenda Packet - Page 78 of 111



 
Mid-Year Budget Review  
Page 4 of 7 

Operating expenses highlighted in Table 4 are running over budget as of the mid-year 
mark. The following categories are expected to balance out by the end of the year, Social 
Security & Medicare, Field Equipment Maintenance, Meter Replacement & Maintenance. 
 
Field Equipment Maintenance is expected to come in under budget. It is over budget due 
to the large SCADA system failure experienced in July/August. The large expense will 
level out by the end of the year.  
 
Meter Replacement & Maintenance is expected to come in under budget. The goal is for 
staff to replace 120 meters a year with the budgeted funds or approximately 5% of the 
District’s meters.  Due to continued supply chain issues the District orders the allocated 
meter replacements in the beginning of the fiscal year and staff replaces the meters 
throughout the year.  
 
Group Health Insurance is projected to come in slightly over budget attributed to calendar 
year health insurance rate increases. Budget Transfer #2 will add $2,000 making the 
revised Group Health Insurance budget $137,000. 
 
Worker’s Compensation Insurance is expected to come in over budget because of 
personnel changes. Budget Transfer #2 will add $5,000 making the revised Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance budget $26,000. 
 
Status of Capital Improvement Program: 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS Budget 
Total As of 

12/31/23 
Estimated 

thru June 24 
WELL #6 RETAINING WALL $30,000 $- $- 

MIXING VALVE SOUTH ALTO TANK $25,000 $- $25,000 
WELL #2 & 3 PUMP & PANEL 
REPLACEMENT 

$300,435 $1,269 $5,000 

CASITAS SPRINGS EMERGENCY FIRE 
FLOW PUMP 

$41,000 $1,114 $2,000 

TICO MUTUAL ANNEXATION PROJECT $20,000 $7,110 $20,000 
2023 WATER PROJECTS SRF WATER MAIN, 
TANKS & PUMPS, ENGR, EASEMENTS 

$250,000 $15,268 $250,000 

SOLAR PROJECTS, PREPARE DESIGN 
BUILD CONTRACT 

$31,000 $464 $5,000 

HYDRANT & VALVE REPLACEMENT $205,000 $- $- 
SCADA COMMUNICATION ALARM & CLA-
VAL FOR EMERGENCY BACKFILL OF 
PARKER 

$25,000 $- $- 

Total $927,435 $25,224 $307,000 
Table 5: Capital Improvements 

  

Agenda Packet - Page 79 of 111



 
Mid-Year Budget Review  
Page 5 of 7 

The District’s Capital Improvement Program has been ramping up in preparation for large 
projects, such as the Tico Mutual Consolidation, 2023 Water Projects and Casitas Mutual 
Consolidation. In consideration of those projects this year’s program needs are expected 
to change.  
 
Postponed to future CIP: 

1. Well #6 retaining wall. 
a. Lower priority project to be balanced with staff time constraints. 

2. Hydrant & Valve Replacement 
a. Reprioritization of funding for consolidation projects and construction. 

3. SCADA Cla-Val integration  
a. Will be part of SCADA system upgrade budgeted for FYE 25. 
 

Projects to be completed by June 24: 
1. South Alto Tank Mixing Valve 

a. The District is currently receiving vendor pricing for parts prior to installation. 
 

Phased Out Projects: 
1. Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 

a. This design has been passed on to NV5 as part of the Technical Assistance 
Grant for the design of the Casitas Mutual Consolidation. 

 
Status Updates: 

1. Well #2 and Well #3 Pump and Panel Replacement 
a. Progressing slowly due to supply chain issues from the electrical panel 

vendor. This project is paused until parts arrive. 
2. Tico Mutual Annexation Project 

a. A funding agreement was signed for $3.2 million, the project should be at 
100% design by May. 

3. 2023 Water Projects 
a. The designs are at 60% and will need to be completed prior to bid and 

construction. 
 

Preliminary Water Rate Analysis 

The District typically conducts a 5-year rate analysis. Uncertain how inflation would 
change over a 5-year period, the District conducted a two-year rate study in early 2023. 
In May of 2023, the Board adopted a two-year rate increase, scheduled for 
implementation in May of 2023 and January of 2024. 

  
In the next few years the District is anticipating to undertake more than $20 million in 
Capital Improvement Projects. The District is eligible for a State Revolving Fund loan, of 
which the first $10 million is interest-free, while any amount exceeding this threshold will 
incur a low interest rate, currently at 2.1%.  The final loan amount will be determined after 
bids are received. 
  

Agenda Packet - Page 80 of 111



 
Mid-Year Budget Review  
Page 6 of 7 

Approximately $13 M has been budgeted for capital improvements in the most recent 
water rate analysis. Improvements above that amount will need to be evaluated in 
combination with other planned projects and a revised water rate structure that will 
evaluate the District’s capacity to take on additional improvements and provide revenue 
stability. 

A new water rate study is needed to ensure that we are able to meet the required cash 
needs of the capital projects and operating expenses of the District through this time 
period.  

 
A rate study is budgeted for the next fiscal year, but staff would like to engage the rate 
consultants sooner to be fiscally prudent. Staff anticipates the need for future rate 
increases to sustain the Capital Improvement Program and continue operation of the 
District. Staff will return to the Board next month with a proposal from Robert D. Niehaus, 
District rate consultants. Budget Transfer #2 will add $50,000 making the revised 
Professional Services budget $125,200. 
 
In April of 2022, the District shifted to a volumetric-based rate model and eliminated the 
meter base rates. Customer usage has been steadily declining in response to the recent 
drought period in the Ojai Valley coupled with a strong conservation message. This has 
resulted in decreased water sales as well as a lack of revenue stability for the District.  
 
Figure 1 shows the trend of customer water use since 2012. 
  

 
Figure 1: Acre-Feet Sold by Fiscal Year 

  

Agenda Packet - Page 81 of 111



 
Mid-Year Budget Review  
Page 7 of 7 

Budget Transfer Request 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

BUDGET TRANSFER #2 

February 21, 2024 

Mid-Year Budget Review 

FY 2023/24 

IT IS HEREBY REQUESTED TO TRANSFER:    

FROM:     Comments 

  OPERATING RESERVES $77,000  
Mid-Year Budget Review 

TO:       

70001 UTILITIES $20,000  
Original Budget: $154,000, 
New: $174,000 

60008 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE $2,000  
Original Budget: $135,000, 
New: $137,000 

60009 
WORKER'S COMPENSATION 
INSURANCE 

$5,000  
Original Budget: $21,000, 
New: $26,000 

60014 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $50,000  
Original Budget: $75,200, 
New: $125,200 

   Total $77,000    

Table 6: Budget Transfer Request #2 

Staff are requesting a budget transfer in the amount of $77,000 for the line items shown 
in Table 6. The afore-mentioned expense categories are not anticipated to come under 
budget by the end of the fiscal year. The professional services category for a rate 
consultant was budgeted for the next fiscal year, and this cost will likely be allocated 
between two fiscal years.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Total Revenues are 3% under budget. Operating expenses are projected at 76% of 
budget for the year, or 24% under budget.  

Budget Transfer #2 in the amount of $77,000 will reduce Operating Reserves and 
increase budget lines for Utilities, Group Health Insurance, Worker’s Compensation 
Insurance, and Professional Services. 

Agenda Packet - Page 82 of 111



 
DATE: February 21, 2024  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR PROPOSALS FOR ACCOUNTING 
SERVICES 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Authorize the General Manager to advertise for procurement of accounting 
services to assist in the preparation of internal controls and for supplemental 
accounting support. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Robust internal controls are essential for maintaining the financial integrity and 
transparency of our operations. They serve to protect our assets, ensure the reliability of 
our financial reporting, and help in compliance with laws and regulations. Additionally, 
having access to supplemental accounting expertise will allow us to address financial 
matters accurately, efficiently and with the necessary professional oversight.   
 
During the last fiscal year audit (FYE 2022), the District received a management letter 
identifying material and significant weaknesses of our internal control processes. A similar 
letter was received for FYE 2023, and staff were directed to return with a corrective plan 
of action to remediate existing problems and prevent future recurrence.  
 
Staff have prepared a Request for Proposals (RFP) for professional accounting services 
to assist with the development of internal controls, and to provide supplemental 
accounting services. 
 
The scope of the proposed accounting services would include, but not be limited to: 
 

1. Evaluation and improvement of our existing internal control framework. 
2. Development of new internal control procedures where necessary. 
3. Provision for supplemental, on-call accounting services to assist with complex 

financial transactions, reporting requirements, grant management, and other 
financial matters as needed. 

 
The RFP process will ensure that we engage a qualified firm that offers the best 
combination of expertise, quality of service, and cost-effectiveness. It will also provide 
transparency and fairness in the selection process. 
  

Agenda Packet - Page 83 of 111



RFP Accounting Services 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
The following timeline for the RFP process is proposed: 
 

 Board Approval: February 21, 2024 
 RFP Issue Date: February 23, 2024 
 Proposal Submission Deadline: March 22, 2024 
 Evaluation Period: March 29, 2024 
 Selection and Notification: April 17, 2024 
 Contract Start Date: April 18, 2024 

 
Your approval will allow us to proceed with advertising the RFP as scheduled, ensuring 
that we secure the needed services. 
 
Staff are confident that hiring a reputable accounting firm will significantly contribute to 
strengthening our financial management. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost of secure accounting services is unbudgeted and is contingent on receiving 
RFP. 
 
Attachment(s): 
 A – RFP for Accounting Services 

Agenda Packet - Page 84 of 111



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

for 

ACCOUNTING SERVICES: INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURE 
DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPLEMENTAL ACCOUNTING SUPPORT 

RFP Number: VRWD-2024-01 

Release Date: February 23, 2024 

Proposal Due Date: March 22, 2024 

Issued by:  
Ventura River Water District 

409 Old Baldwin Road 
Ojai, CA 93023 

https://vrwd.ca.gov 

Submit Questions and Proposals by Email to: alma@vrwd.ca.gov 

ATTACHMENT 9A

Agenda Packet - Page 85 of 111



RFP – Accounting Services 
Page 2 of 4 

I. Statement of Purpose
The Ventura River Water District (VRWD) is seeking proposals from qualified accounting firms to 
assist in developing internal control procedures and to provide supplementary accounting support 
for complex financial transactions. The selected firm will work closely with VRWD to develop a 
robust system of internal controls, accurate financial record-keeping, and compliance with 
relevant regulations and laws. 

II. Introduction
The Ventura River Water District (District) serves domestic water in the Ojai valley from Casitas 
Springs to a portion of the City of Ojai. The district occupies 3.3 square miles and serves a 
population of approximately 6,100. The District provides potable water to residential, commercial 
and industrial properties. The District does not serve agricultural water. The District operates five 
domestic water wells, two booster stations and five water tanks. Two of the District’s zones receive 
Casitas Municipal water exclusively. 

Ventura River Water District is organized under the County Water District Code (California Water 
Code 30000). A five-member board of directors, elected at large, provides governance. Directors 
serve overlapping four-year terms, and every year at the beginning of each calendar year they 
select board officers.  

VRWD is responsible for providing reliable, high-quality water services to our customers. As part 
of its commitment to transparency and accountability, the District recognizes the need for the 
establishment of strong internal controls and supplementary accounting services. 

III. Scope of Services
The selected firm will be expected to provide the following services: 

1. Internal Control Procedures:
Evaluate and Refine the Review Process

 Evaluate the current internal control environment, monthly bank reconciliations, journal
entries, fixed asset schedules, depreciation schedules and other reconciling items to
assist with preparing a schedule by which transactions can be reviewed by the General
Manager on a regular and timely basis.

Development of Year-End Procedures
 Analytical review of both income and expenses for reasonableness of changes year-over-

year.
 Review and reconciliation of fixed asset accounts to ensure that the ending balances are

supported by detailed schedules and transfers out of construction in process have been
memorialized within the general ledger.

 Develop documentation process for review of journal entries recorded and related backup
to ensure that the entry is proper and agrees to underlying support.

 Development of a year-end close checklist to identify the various types of entries required
for consideration.

ATTACHMENT 9A

Agenda Packet - Page 86 of 111



RFP – Accounting Services 
Page 3 of 4 

 Develop documentation process for review of bank reconciliations and related backup to
ensure that the reconciliations agree to underlying support.

 Assist with process for posting any identified entries necessary prior to audit
commencement.

 Provide recommendations for control enhancements.
 Assist with the development of new internal control procedures.
 Provide training to VRWD staff on internal control best practices.

2. Supplementary Accounting Services: 
 Accounting for Reimbursable Grants
 Trial balance preparation
 Preparation of financial statements and reports
 General ledger maintenance.
 Account/Bank reconciliations.
 Payroll deduction support.
 Budget monitoring and variance analysis.
 Assistance with preparation for the annual audit.
 Other related accounting support services as needed.

IV. Term of Contract 
The initial contract will be for 1 year with an option to extend the contract for 2 one-year contract 
periods. 

V. Other 
The District’s Office Manager is responsible for the day-to-day bookkeeping. We are open to new 
ways of doing things. Consequently, if there are other services not listed in the RFP that may be 
beneficial to the District, we invite you to add them to your response. Please be specific and define 
what those services are, how they would benefit the District and what the associated costs would 
be.  

VI. Fees and Rates 
VRWD would like to see two cost estimates. The first estimate will be for a lump sum amount to 
evaluate and develop internal controls. The second estimate will be for supplementary accounting 
services from senior level staff or higher. We anticipate needed a minimum of 10 hours per month 
and billed in 1-hour increments. Please provide an hourly rate schedule with the proposal for 
supplementary accounting support. 

VII. Proposal Requirements 
Proposals submitted must include the following information: 

1. Firm's background and experience in providing accounting services, particularly for public
or government entities.

2. Detailed description of the approach and methodology for providing the requested
services, including any innovative solutions or technologies that will be utilized.

ATTACHMENT 9A

Agenda Packet - Page 87 of 111



RFP – Accounting Services 
Page 4 of 4 

3. Qualifications and experience of the key staff who will be assigned to the VRWD account.
4. References from previous clients, preferably within the public sector.
5. Proposed fee structure for (1) developing internal control procedures, and (2) hourly rates

and fee schedule for supplementary accounting services.
6. Any additional information or services the firm can provide that may benefit the District.

VIII. Evaluation Criteria 
Proposals will be evaluated based on the following criteria: 

1. Firm's experience and past performance.
2. Qualification of personnel.
3. Approach and methodology.
4. Innovation and use of technology.
5. Cost-effectiveness.
6. References.

Since this engagement will be through a Professional Services Agreement, the selection process 
will not be based on fees – this is not a low bid contract.  Firms will be evaluated on their technical 
merits. 

IX. Submission Instructions 

Proposals must be submitted electronically to the email address provided below no later than 
4:00 PM PST on March 22, 2024. Late proposals will not be considered. 

Email: alma@vrwd.ca.gov 
Subject Line: RFP Response - Accounting Services VRWD-2024-01 

X. Contact Information 
For questions or requests for additional information, please contact: 

Alma Quezada 
General Manager 
Ventura River Water District 
409 Old Baldwin Road, Ojai, CA 93023 
805-646-3403 
alma@vrwd.ca.gov 

XI. Additional Provisions 
The VRWD reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive informalities and minor 
irregularities in proposals received, and to accept any portion of a proposal or all items proposed 
if deemed in the best interest of the District to do so. 

ATTACHMENT 9A

Agenda Packet - Page 88 of 111



 

 
DATE: February 21, 2024 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., General Manager 

SUBJECT: UPDATE TO PRIORITIZATION OF 2023 WATER PROJECTS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Review and comment on the updated prioritization schedule of the 2023 Water 
Projects, and 

2. Direct staff to proceed with finalizing plans and specifications based on 
recommended prioritization schedule. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The District has been working toward implementing the 2023 Water Projects. These 
improvements were initially projected to cost $10 million. However, due to rising inflation 
during project development, the current estimated cost has nearly doubled and is 
approaching $20 million. In addition to the 2023 Water Projects [$13 – 16.4 million 
depending on final list], the District will be working on several other projects in parallel. 
These include: (1) Tico Consolidation [$3.2 Million], (2) Casitas Mutual Consolidation [$7 
million], and (3) Casitas Mutual Pipeline Extension [$820,000]. 
 
In January of 2024, staff recommended the District limit planned 2023 Water Projects 
closer to $10 Million, as this strategy will ensure that we take full advantage of the interest-
free portion of the State Revolving Fund (SRF) funding while avoiding unnecessary debt 
and interest expenses to ensure our long-term financial stability.  
 
Staff presented Table 1 to showcase the priority projects, and the Board unanimously 
approved this approach. With new information received, Director Kuebler has requested 
an in-depth discussion on the Baldwin Flood/Erosion protection wall (Figures 1 & 2). 
 
Baldwin Flood/Erosion Control  
In 2015, 2 to 40-ton granite boulders were installed on the westerly edge of the Baldwin 
property extending 300 linear feet near the District’s critical facilities (Figure 3). The 
objective was to install boulders for flood protection of a size too large and heavy for the 
river to wash away. The boulders are expected to sink when undermined and stay on the 
bank.  
 
Additional flood protection is proposed to provide for the protection of the booster station 
against flooding and related erosion. The bank protection would extend 330 feet along 
the District’s western boundary and adjacent to the water tanks. Installation of the 
proposed bank protection would prevent high-energy scouring flows from entering the 
Baldwin facility but would continue to allow back water to enter the site. 
 

Agenda Packet - Page 89 of 111



 
 
Update to 2023 Water Projects 
Page 2 of 8 
 
The proposed bank protection would provide 4 feet of freeboard above the 100-year flood 
water elevation. The panels and boosters currently rest 2.5 feet above the 100-year flood 
elevation.  
 
Proposed construction work calls for temporary relocation of the 2 to 40-ton boulders to 
allow for excavation of the current bank to approximately 5 feet in depth. The boulders 
would then be recessed into the cut bank and encased in a concrete foundation and an 
additional 4-foot masonry wall constructed above the boulders (Figures 1 & 2). The North 
Baldwin tank and its foundation would have to be rebuilt to create room for excavation 
equipment to install flood/erosion protection. 
 
New Information 
Information received from SRF Staff on January 25, 2024, indicate the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) are concerned their comments were ignored in 
the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND). Proposed mitigation measures 
by CDFW were not incorporated into the final IS/MND as it was believed that work on 
District property was outside of CDFW jurisdiction. On February 13, 2024, SRF informed 
us that CDFW is asserting their jurisdiction for work being conducted along/close to the 
Ventura River and requiring the District to file a Lake and Streambed Alteration 
Agreement for their review. CDFW has stated that excavation, backfilling, and 
construction of a mason concrete wall along the Ventura River may introduce debris, soil, 
silt, sawdust, rubbish, raw cement/concrete and other substances that would be 
hazardous to aquatic life and the surrounding riparian habitat, as this is inhabited by 
several endangered species such as the steelhead, red-legged frog, arroyo chub, and the 
western pond turtle. In addition, the CDFW will require a certified biologist with a Scientific 
Collection Permit to be onsite during construction.   
 
Should the Board desire to phase out the Flood/Erosion Control wall, SRF funding will not 
be impacted so long as the other components can be completed without the removed 
elements.  
 
It’s important to note that in the event a major flood damages our booster station, the 
District has the option to switch use to Casitas Municipal water to provide potable water 
to our customers.  

SRF Funding 
Funding for these projects is slated to come from the State Revolving Fund (SRF), for 
which the District has received confirmation that the listed projects are eligible for funding. 
The terms of the SRF funding stipulate that the first $10 million will be interest-free, while 
any amount exceeding this threshold will incur a low interest rate, currently at 2.1%.  
 
The District is in the process of consolidating with Casitas Mutual, which may provide 
additional funding of up to $10 Million in a 0% interest loan. However, SRF staff have 
cautioned that funding may be reduced depending on the project and there may be issues 
with the CEQA documents after 5 years. The District has the option to construct all 

Agenda Packet - Page 90 of 111



 
 
Update to 2023 Water Projects 
Page 3 of 8 
 
projects under the current 0% interest loan and request that SRF adjust the rate to 0% 
under a second loan, however, the District will assume the risk if funding falls through and 
continue to pay interest.  
 

Financial Situation and Cash Reserves 
The District budgeted to fund up to $13 million for the 2023 Water Projects under the 
current water rate structure. However, the 10-year financial model used has incorrect 
assumptions with the most notable being that the District would receive loan and grant 
funding as lump sums. The anticipated loan and grants work on a disbursement model, 
which means the District would float construction costs for several capital improvements 
until reimbursement is received.  
 
The 10-year financial model did not consider the float time to receive reimbursement for 
all planned capital improvements. The District’s primary financial limitation is anticipated 
to be its available liquid cash reserves to fund several major construction projects 
cumulatively valued at over $20 Million. The challenge is compounded by the delay in 
reimbursement, which is anticipated to take between 45 to 60 days. There is a risk in 
tying up the District’s cash reserves that will leave little available for daily operating 
expenses or a catastrophic emergency repair.  
 
Should the Board wish to proceed with all planned improvements, Staff have received 
preliminary approval to open a line of credit with Mechanics Bank in the event our cash 
reserves are depleted, however, this will incur an interest expense.  
  
By adhering to the $10 million budget, we will prioritize the most critical improvements 
needed to maintain and enhance our water infrastructure, ensuring reliable service for 
our customers while also demonstrating fiscal responsibility. 

North Baldwin Tank 

On January 23, 2024, the North Baldwin tank was taken offline to allow for interior 
inspection of the tank. James Bailey, a 35-year veteran with Superior Tank, was onsite to 
inspect the North Baldwin Tank slated for replacement. Mr. Bailey noted a few non-
standard repairs in the tank, most notably the leak repairs on the floor of the tank, which 
were repaired by drilling a bolt and washer into the floor and covering them with epoxy. 
Other non-standard repairs included galvanized wire used on the float in lieu of stainless 
steel and galvanized metal welded to the floor of the tank to hold the float.  

Mr. Bailey stated the tank was in good condition and not in need of replacement. He 
further stated that with key repairs, regular maintenance, and the addition of cathodic 
protection, the tank would last a minimum of another 30 years and likely longer. An 
estimate of the needed repairs has been provided totaling $89,958. 

 

Agenda Packet - Page 91 of 111



 
 
Update to 2023 Water Projects 
Page 4 of 8 
 
Staff Recommendations 

 Staff recommends phasing out the Baldwin Site Flood/Erosion Protection with 
Water Drainage Improvements and rehabilitating the North Baldwin Tank in lieu of 
replacing it. This approach will keep most of the projects viable by reducing costs 
by $2.869 Million. 
 

 Staff recommends the Board consider the revised schedule as outlined in Table 2. 
The revised schedule includes one base bid with defined schedules and additive 
alternates. Costs are estimated and the real costs will not be known until bids are 
received. As such, staff is recommending using the additive alternate process in 
the event construction prices are lower than anticipated, then one or more additive 
alternates can be added to the scope of the project.  
 

 The 2023 Water Projects will be phased in over three years to better manage cash 
flows as these improvements will run in parallel with three other major projects. 
This approach has received preliminary approval by SRF staff.  
 

 Staff believes this approach will balance our ambition to improve our water system 
with the practical need to manage our financial resources prudently. 
 

 If Table 2 is approved, Staff would like to proceed with preparing final plans and 
specifications and the bid package.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
Approximately $13 M has been budgeted for capital improvements in this year’s approved 
budget. Improvements above that amount will need to be evaluated in combination with 
other planned projects and a revised water rate structure that will evaluate the District’s 
capacity to take on additional improvements and provide revenue stability. 
  

Agenda Packet - Page 92 of 111



 
 
Update to 2023 Water Projects 
Page 5 of 8 
 

Table 1: 2023 Water Projects & Priority Level 

  Projects Project Cost Sum of Phase 

Bid Package of High 
Priority Items 

Second Water Tank at Parker  $           2,871,000    

Baldwin Site Pump Replacement  $           1,826,000    
Baldwin Pump Station Primary Switch Gear 
Replacement 

 $              759,000    

North Baldwin Tank Replacement  $           1,903,000    

Baldwin Site Chlorination Facility  $              275,000    

Emergency Turnout at Ojai Terrace  $              396,000    

Santa Ana Main  $           1,980,000    

Re-Plumb Encino & Thomas PRV Vaults  $              451,000    

       $        10,461,000  

 Additive Alternates Infill Pipe along AR 33/150  $              847,000    

       $             847,000  

Separate Bid Solar Projects  $           1,685,000    

       $          1,685,000  

Move to long term CIP 

Ojai Terrace Pipe Replacements  $              902,000    

Parker Pump Station Improvements  $              198,000    

New Parker Pump Station (Zone 5)  $              319,000    

Loma Drive Main  $              858,000    

Standby Generator Sound Wall  $                88,000    

       $          2,365,000  

Phase out Baldwin Site Flood/Erosion Protection  $           1,056,000    

       $          1,056,000  

Use of VRWD Staff Water Drainage Improvements  Staff time    

       Staff time  
      
  Total Project Cost  $         16,414,000   $        16,414,000  

Agenda Packet - Page 93 of 111



 
 
Update to 2023 Water Projects 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 

Figure 2: Profile View of Proposed Flood/Erosion 

Figure 1: Typical Cross-Section of Proposed Flood/Erosion Control 

Agenda Packet - Page 94 of 111



 
 
Update to 2023 Water Projects 
Page 7 of 8 
 

  Figure 3: Existing Baldwin Boulder Flood Protection 

Agenda Packet - Page 95 of 111



 
 
Update to 2023 Water Projects 
Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 
 

Table 2: Updated 2023 Prioritization Schedule 
2023 Water Projects

Schedule Projects Project Cost
Schedule 
Subtotal

Totals

A Second Water Tank at Parker 2,871,000$            2,871,000$            

B Baldwin Site Pump Replacement 1,826,000$            

B
Baldwin Pump Station Primary 
Switch Gear Replacement

759,000$               

B Baldwin Site Chlorination Facility 275,000$               2,860,000$            

C
Emergency Turnout at Ojai 
Terrace

396,000$               

C Santa Ana Main 1,980,000$            

C
Re-Plumb Encino & Thomas PRV 
Vaults

451,000$               

C North Baldwin Tank Rehabilitation 90,000$                 

C Infill Pipe along AR 33/150 847,000$               3,764,000$            

D Solar Projects 1,685,000$            1,685,000$            

Subtotal Base Bid 11,180,000$          

Ojai Terrace Pipe Replacements 902,000$               

Parker Pump Station Improvements 198,000$               

New Parker Pump Station (Zone  5) 319,000$               

Standby Generator Sound Wall 88,000$                 2,365,000$            

Loma Drive Main 858,000$               

Subtotal Additive Alternates 2,365,000$            

TOTAL PROJECT COST 13,545,000$          

Additive Alternates

Base Bid

Agenda Packet - Page 96 of 111



 
DATE: February 21, 2024  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL FOR SUSTAINABLE POWER ARRAY FOR RENEWABLE 
KILOWATTS (SPARK) PROJECT, APPROVE RESOLUTION 2024-XXX 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Adopt Resolution 2024-xxx approving the grant application and designating an 
authorized representative. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Bureau of Reclamation is offering WaterSmart: Water and Energy Efficiency grants to 
support projects that result in quantifiable and sustained water savings, implement renewable 
energy components, and support broader sustainability benefits. This grant is an essential 
step towards offsetting the costs associated with the installation of a solar panel microgrid for 
the Ventura River Water District. 
 
The District has prepared an application for funding group 1 with a maximum award of 
$500,000 for smaller on-the-ground projects that can be completed by December 31, 2026. 
Award notification is anticipated on December 31, 2024. The grant has a non-Federal 
cost sharing requirement of 50% or more that can be met through cash or in-kind 
contributions.  
 
Eligible projects include any one or a combination of water conservation projects OR 
renewable energy projects. Proposed projects for this round of funding should not have an 
estimated construction start date that is prior to December 31, 2024. 
 
Project Overview: 
The proposed solar panel microgrid project is designed to improve the energy efficiency and 
sustainability of our water district operations. The plans for the project are currently 60% 
complete, and we have finalized the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
compliance. Furthermore, we have successfully negotiated and signed agreements with 
Southern California Edison, securing the Net Energy Metering (NEM) 2.0 rate, which will 
enhance our savings on electricity costs. 
 
Financial Aspects: 
The construction cost for the solar panel array is estimated at $1.685 Million. The annual 
maintenance costs are estimated to range from $8,000 to $17,000. Upon completion of the 
project, the District will be eligible to claim the Biden Investment Tax Credit (ITC), 
guaranteeing a 30% credit, with the potential to increase up to 50% of the net present value, 
depending on the final tax regulations at the time of completion. Below is a simplified cost 
matrix to the District with and without the grant.  
 

Agenda Packet - Page 97 of 111



WaterSMART Grant Application 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
In addition to the tax credit, the District will see an energy savings estimated at $135,000 on 
the first year following installation.  
 
Grant Application: 
The deadline for the WaterSmart grant application is February 22, 2024. To proceed, a 
resolution approved by the Board of Directors is required. The grant offers an opportunity to 
reduce the financial burden to install solar on the District and its ratepayers. 
 
Staff requests that the Board approve the attached resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to submit the WaterSmart grant application.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving this item. However, if the grant is 
awarded, the District will receive $500,000 to offset construction of a solar microgrid. 
  
Attachments: 
 A – SPARK Project Application Packet 

B - Resolution 2024-xxx WaterSmart Grant Application 
 

District Funded  District & Grant Funded

1,685,000$        Cost 1,685,000$       Cost

500,000$          Grant

505,500$           Tax Credit (30%) 355,500$          Tax Credit (30%)

1,179,500$       Upfront District Cost 829,500$          Upfront District Cost

Agenda Packet - Page 98 of 111



 
DATE: February 21, 2024  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL FOR SUSTAINABLE POWER ARRAY FOR RENEWABLE 
KILOWATTS (SPARK) PROJECT, APPROVE RESOLUTION 2024-XXX 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Adopt Resolution 2024-xxx approving the grant application and designating an 
authorized representative. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Bureau of Reclamation is offering WaterSmart: Water and Energy Efficiency grants to 
support projects that result in quantifiable and sustained water savings, implement renewable 
energy components, and support broader sustainability benefits. This grant is an essential 
step towards offsetting the costs associated with the installation of a solar panel microgrid for 
the Ventura River Water District. 
 
The District has prepared an application for funding group 1 with a maximum award of 
$500,000 for smaller on-the-ground projects that can be completed by December 31, 2026. 
Award notification is anticipated on December 31, 2024. The grant has a non-Federal 
cost sharing requirement of 50% or more that can be met through cash or in-kind 
contributions.  
 
Eligible projects include any one or a combination of water conservation projects OR 
renewable energy projects. Proposed projects for this round of funding should not have an 
estimated construction start date that is prior to December 31, 2024. 
 
Project Overview: 
The proposed solar panel microgrid project is designed to improve the energy efficiency and 
sustainability of our water district operations. The plans for the project are currently 60% 
complete, and we have finalized the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
compliance. Furthermore, we have successfully negotiated and signed agreements with 
Southern California Edison, securing the Net Energy Metering (NEM) 2.0 rate, which will 
enhance our savings on electricity costs. 
 
Financial Aspects: 
The construction cost for the solar panel array is estimated at $1.685 Million. The annual 
maintenance costs are estimated to range from $8,000 to $17,000. Upon completion of the 
project, the District will be eligible to claim the Biden Investment Tax Credit (ITC), 
guaranteeing a 30% credit, with the potential to increase up to 50% of the net present value, 
depending on the final tax regulations at the time of completion. Below is a simplified cost 
matrix to the District with and without the grant.  
 

Agenda Packet - Page 99 of 111



WaterSMART Grant Application 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
In addition to the tax credit, the District will see an energy savings estimated between 
$110,000 to $185,000 annually over a 25-year period. 
 
Grant Application: 
The deadline for the WaterSmart grant application is February 22, 2024. To proceed, a 
resolution approved by the Board of Directors is required. The grant offers an opportunity to 
reduce the financial burden to install solar on the District and its ratepayers. 
 
Staff requests that the Board approve the attached resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to submit the WaterSmart grant application.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving this item. However, if the grant is 
awarded, the District will receive $500,000 to offset construction of a solar microgrid. 
  
Attachments: 
 A – Resolution 2024-xxx WaterSmart Grant Application  

 
 

District Funded  District & Grant Funded

1,685,000$        Cost 1,685,000$       Cost

500,000$          Grant

505,500$           Tax Credit (30%) 355,500$          Tax Credit (30%)

1,179,500$       Upfront District Cost 829,500$          Upfront District Cost

Agenda Packet - Page 100 of 111



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VENTURA RIVER 
WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2024-xxx 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO APPLY FOR A 
WATERSMART GRANT FOR THE SUSTAINABLE POWER ARRAY FOR 

RENEWABLE KILOWATTS (SPARK) PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the Ventura River Water District (District) proposes to install a solar project 
that provides renewable energy to manage and deliver water that will result in quantifiable 
and sustained energy generation and savings, and  

WHEREAS, the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) is offering WaterSMART 
Grants: Water and Energy Efficiency Grants for Fiscal Year 2024 and Fiscal Year 2025, 
to help water districts and other entities with projects that conserve water and promote 
use of clean, renewable energy, and 

WHEREAS, the District has the legal authority and is authorized to enter into a funding 
agreement with the USBR; and 

WHEREAS, the District identifies the need for implementing projects that will increase the 
use of renewable energy in managing and delivering water that result in quantifiable and 
sustained energy generation and/or savings; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (Board) of the District recognizes the importance of 
securing additional funding through grant programs such as the WaterSMART Grants for 
the purpose of supporting the District's water management and conservation projects; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board acknowledges that the General Manager of the District is 
responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of the District, and is in an 
appropriate position to apply for, negotiate, and enter into agreements with the USBR; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Ventura River 
Water District as follows: 

1. The Board hereby verifies that the General Manager of the Ventura River Water
District is hereby authorized to act on behalf of the District in applying for,
accepting, and entering into WaterSMART Grants: Water and Energy Efficiency
Grants agreements with the USBR.

2. The Board has reviewed the application prepared and submitted by the District
staff for the WaterSMART Grants: Water and Energy Efficiency Grants for Fiscal
Year 2024 and Fiscal Year 2025, and fully supports the submission of the said
application.

ATTACHMENT 11A

Agenda Packet - Page 101 of 111



3. The Board commits to providing all necessary assistance and support to the
General Manager in fulfilling the requirements of the grant application process and,
upon award, pledges to work cooperatively with the USBR to meet all established
deadlines and requirements for entering into a grant or cooperative agreement.

4. The Board authorizes the General Manager to execute all documents, including
grant or cooperative agreements, and to take all actions necessary to secure
WaterSMART Grants: Water and Energy Efficiency Grants funds and to implement
and administer the projects for which the funds are awarded in accordance with
the terms and conditions prescribed by the USBR.

5. The Ventura River Water District General Manager, or designee, is hereby
authorized and directed to submit any required documents, invoices, and reports
required to obtain grant funding.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of February 2024. 

CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Ventura River Water District at the meeting held 
on February 21, 2024, motion by ___________________ and seconded by 
_________________, motion passed by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 

Attest: 

_________________________  _________________________  
Bruce Kuebler, President Alma Quezada, Secretary 

ATTACHMENT 11A

Agenda Packet - Page 102 of 111



DATE: February 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: GOALS UPDATE 

RECOMMENDATION 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Review and comment on the Goals.

BACKGROUND 
Each year a set of goals is compiled. The goals are one of the metrics used to evaluate 
the performance of the General Manager.  They also serve to guide the preparation of 
the budget for the next fiscal year and scheduling of staff activities. 

The goals have been updated to serve as measurable metrics for the new General 
Manager’s evaluation period.  

The last update to the goals was presented on October 18, 2023. Several of the goals 
presented are still in progress with headway being made toward completion. Other goals 
open-ended activities specifically aligned with the District’s adopted values.  

The updated summary of goals highlights the items that have been completed, are in 
progress and/or open-ended. 

An update on the 2023/24 Goals is attached. 

FISCAL SUMMARY 
The financial impact of the Goals is captured in the 10-Year Capital Improvement 
Program and in District’s Budget.  

Attachment(s): 
A - Goals 

Agenda Packet - Page 103 of 111



2023/24 Goals
GOAL DESCRIPTION

C
o
m
p
le
te

Interconnection Agreement with Edison 

to lock in 20‐year Edison rates

Ventura Energy, submitted the Interconnection Agreement Applications for the 

Baldwin and Parker facilities on February 17, 2023.
 
The Baldwin and Parker sites have 

been approved for the NEM 2.0 schedule. 

Deadline to bring solar online is March 2026. The electric meters have been retrofitted 

in anticipation of solar panel installation.

Tico Annexation

CEQA process complete and adopted by the Board on March 15, 2023. The District has 

secured a funding agreement for $3.2 Million. Plans & Specifications are at 60% and 

under review by the State and will be refined after feedback is received. The LAFCo  

hearing is scheduled for February 21, 2024.

Casitas Mutual Water Annexation

Casitas Mutual shareholders voted to consolidate with Ventura River Water District. 

Casitas Mutual and VRWD have executed a Consolidation agreement and are working 

with the State and the State's assigned consultant (NV5) to prepare engineering plans 

and many of the necessary filings to consolidate. Preliminary Design Report underway.

Finalize Plans and Specifications for 2023 

Water Projects

The plans and specifications for the 2023 Water Projects are 60% complete and under 

review by the State. The State is evaluating comments from the CDFW and may 

require an amendment to the IS/MND to incorporate their comments. The CDFW is 
requiring a Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement along with a certified biologist 
with a Scientific Collection Permit to be onsite for work along or close to the river.

DWR Grant for Casitas Pipeline 

Extension

After acceptance of the DWR grant, staff will implement the pipeline extension project 

to replace 1,500 linear feet of pipeline that will facilitate the consolidation process 

with Casitas Mutual. 

Professional Development of Staff Identify opportunities for professional development of staff to keep skillset sharp.

Install Solar Facilities by 2026 to lock in 

20‐year Edison Rate Benefits

Feasibility Study completed and approved by the Board. New Infrastructure Act will 

provide VRWD possible 30% funding. The electric meters have been retrofitted in 

anticipation of solar panel installation at no cost to the District. Staff is applying for 

another grant funding opportunity to offset the construction cost.

Prepare Multi‐Year Water Rates for FYE 

2025 ‐ 2029

The last water rates were implemented on January 15, 2024 with a Casitas pass‐

through rate. The District is planning to undertake approximately $20 Million dollars in 

capital improvement projects and requires revenue stability for contruction phase and 

future debt service. 

Service Line Inventory

Prepare Workplan for approval by the DDW to use interpolation method of service line 

identification. Customers will be notified via bill stuffer in February billing of upcoming 

activities. Complete service line inventory of the District and customer side by October 
16, 2024.

Cross Connection Control Plan
NEW STATE REQUIREMENT. Develop a Cross Connection Control Plan to prevent 

backflow into our potable water system by July 1, 2025

Fiscal responsibility
Identify opportunities to reduce unnecessary costs without sacrificing current level of 

service.

Grant funding

Submit for grant/loan reimbursement in a timely fashion and train the Office 

Manager/Assistant General Manager on grant management and reimbursment 

procedures. Identify potential grants to offset CIP costs.

Public education and outreach with 

quarterly e‐mail newsletters on: January, 

April, July, and October. 

Quarterly newsletters are working well staff has expanded the email list to include all 

customers for whom the District has an email address.  

Water conservation education and 

implementation.

Educate customers about low water landscaping and irrigation, grey water systems 

and rain water capture.  The District is working with Watershed Progressive to use 

grant funds for site assessments of the District's customers. An application was also 

submitted for funding to install drought tolerant landscapes.

Regularly meet with the General 

Managers of Casitas and Meiners Oaks 

Water Districts to improve collaboration. 

Staff met with Meiners Oaks to discuss emergency protocols during catastrophic 

events.  Staff met with Casitas to discuss options to reduce fixed monthly meter 

charges for the District 5 interties with Casitas.  

In
 P
ro
gr
e
ss

O
p
en

‐E
n
d
ed

ATTACHMENT 12A



 

 
DATE: February 21, 2024 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER’S REVIEW – STAFF SURVEY 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that:  

1. The Board review the revised Employee Survey on the General Manager’s 
performance and direct staff to distribute in the last week of March.  

 
BACKGROUND 
The Board’s evaluation of the General Manager is based on several metrics, one of which 
includes input from supervised staff. Staff input is a vital component for the Board to 
adequately assess the effectiveness of the General Manager. This evaluation will be a 
vital component as the District is under new leadership. 
 
The survey process allows staff an opportunity to provide anonymous feedback to the 
Board on the General Manager’s performance. To make the feedback more anonymous, 
the survey forms are provided directly to the District’s legal counsel as a neutral, third-
party. The Board does not have direct access to the submitted surveys.  
 
Survey Process 
The surveys are sent directly to the District’s Legal Counsel as a neutral, third-party to 
receive comments from staff during the review of the General Manager. Employees are 
not required to print their name on the survey. Legal Counsel summarizes the comments 
for the Board President as appropriate.  The survey questions have been updated based 
on feedback from the Board and are attached.  
 
If an employee desires a personal interview by the legal counsel, they may request it.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The current cost for the District Legal Counsel is $325/hour and it is estimated that 4 
hours will be needed for a cost of $1,300. 

 

Attachments: 

 A – Annual Employee Survey 
 



2023 Employee Survey of the General Manager 
 
This questionnaire is part of our ongoing effort to anonymously poll all employees to improve 
workplace effectiveness and satisfaction. The survey is intended to include the staff’s input on the 
General Manager’s performance.  
 
The Board appreciates you taking the time to answer honestly to help us ensure that the VRWD 
is a productive and rewarding place to work. The questions are designed to encompass various 
aspects of the General Manager’s role while recognizing that the General Manager has been in the 
position a short time and some questions may not apply. Please answer the questions as best as 
you can and feel free to use additional sheets of paper if needed.  
 
Survey Process 
The surveys are sent directly to the District’s Legal Counsel as a neutral, third-party to receive 
comments from staff during the review of the General Manager. Employees are not required to print 
their name on the survey. Legal Counsel summarizes the comments for the Board President as 
appropriate, who will confidentially share responses with the other board members. Only Legal 
Counsel will have access to submitted surveys. 
 
Instructions 
Please answer any applicable questions you would like to provide feedback on. Additional 
comments can be added in the blank space next to each question. Use additional sheets of paper 
if necessary. When complete, place the questionnaire in the postage paid, sealed envelope, 
addressed to the Attorney for the District. The Attorney will keep your comments confidential.  
 
Thank you in advance for answering the survey. 

 
DO NOT INCLUDE YOUR NAME.  LETTERS MUST BE MAILED NO LATER THAN APRIL 5, 2024. 

 
1. The General Manager effectively communicates the District’s goals and policies to 

staff.  
 
__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 
 
 

2. To what extent do you agree the General Manager provides clear and effective 
leadership for the District? 

 
__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

ATTACHMENT 13A



Survey Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
3. The General Manager fosters a sense of unity and teamwork among staff. 
 

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

 
4. The General Manager is accessible and available to staff for questions and 

concerns. 
 

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

 
5. The General Manager is effective in managing the District’s resources and budget in 

a responsible and transparent manner, without compromising the quality of services. 
 

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

 
 

6. The General Manager seeks and utilizes funding opportunities to support the 
District’s projects and initiatives. 
 

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

  

ATTACHMENT 13A



Survey Page 3 of 4 

7. The General Manager fosters a positive work culture and encourages professional
development among staff.

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

8. The General Manager effectively leads and motivates the team to achieve high
performance and meet the District’s objectives.

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

9. The General Manager shows respect for all employees and promotes a culture of
equality and inclusion within the District.

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

10. The General Manager is proficient at making informed decisions and solving
problems that arise within the District.

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

ATTACHMENT 13A



Survey Page 4 of 4 
 
 

11. The General Manager ensures that all operations comply with legal and regulatory 
requirements and prioritizes risk management to protect public safety.  

 
__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

 
 
12. The General Manager consistently demonstrates a high priority for employee 

safety in their decisions and actions. 
 

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

 
13. The General Manager allows staff adequate autonomy to perform their duties 

without excessive oversight or control. 
 

__ Strongly Agree 
__ Agree 
__ Somewhat Agree 
__ Neither Agree nor Disagree 
__ Somewhat Disagree 
__ Disagree 
__ Strongly Disagree 

 

14. Is there anything else you would like to share? 

ATTACHMENT 13A



 
DATE: February 21, 2024  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada P.G. General Manager 

SUBJECT: CSDA AND SDRMA BOARD VACANCIES 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Discuss if board members are interested in serving on the CSDA or SDRMA Board 
and submit nominations. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICT ASSOCIATION (CSDA) 
The CSDA Elections and Bylaws Committee is looking for independent special district board 
members or their general managers who are interested in leading the direction of the 
California Special Districts Association for the 2025 - 2027 term. The District is part of the 
Coastal Network and there are two vacant positions for seats A and B. 
   
The leadership of CSDA is elected from its six geographical networks. Each of the six 
networks has three seats on the board with staggered 3-year terms. Candidates must be 
affiliated with an independent special district that is a CSDA Regular Member in good 
standing and located within the geographic network they seek to represent.  
   
The CSDA Board of Directors is the governing body responsible for all policy decisions related 
to CSDA’s member services, legislative advocacy, professional development, and other 
resources for members. The Board of Directors is crucial to the operation of the Association 
and to the representation of the common interests of all California’s special districts before 
the Legislature and the State Administration. Serving on the Board requires one’s interest in 
the issues confronting special districts statewide. 
   
Commitment and Expectations:  

 Attend all board meetings, usually 4-5 meetings annually, at the CSDA office in 
Sacramento. 

 Participate on at least one committee, meets 3-5 times a year at the CSDA office in 
Sacramento.  

o (CSDA reimburses directors for their related expenses for board and 
committee meetings as outlined in board policy). 

 Attend, at minimum, the following CSDA annual events: Special Districts Legislative 
Days - held in the spring, and the CSDA Annual Conference - held in the fall.  

o (CSDA does not reimburse expenses for the two conferences even if a board 
or committee meeting is held in conjunction with the event). 

 Complete all four modules of CSDA’s Special District Leadership Academy within 2 
years of being elected.  

 (CSDA does not reimburse expenses for the academy classes even if a board or 
committee meeting is held in conjunction with the event). 



 
Nomination Procedures: 
Any Regular Member in good standing is eligible to nominate one person, a board member 
or managerial employee (as defined by that district’s Board of Directors) for election to the 
CSDA Board of Directors.  
 
Candidates must be nominated by resolution along with a Candidate Information Sheet. The 
nominations deadline is April 20, 2024 for the Coastal Network.  
 
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION (SDRMA) 
A vacancy has occurred on the Special District Risk Management Association (SDRMA) 
Board of Directors. The current term of the vacancy will expire on December 31, 2025, and 
will be filled by appointment of the Board of Directors based on an application and interview 
process. 
 
Commitment and Expectations: 
Directors are elected to four-year terms. The term for this current vacancy will end on 
December 31, 2025. 
 
Board Members are reimbursed for reasonable travel and lodging in accordance with SDRMA 
Board Ordinance No. 2022-01 and applicable laws and are allowed to claim a stipend of $235 
per meeting day or for each day’s service rendered as a Member of the Board. 
 
The Board meets from seven to ten times annually with an average of eight board meetings 
per year. Generally, the Board does not meet more than one meeting per month at the 
SDRMA office in Sacramento and at two conference locations. 
Meeting dates are typically the first Wednesday and Thursday of the month from 2:00 to 5:00 
p.m. Wednesday and 8:00 to 10:00 a.m. Thursday and average four to six hours. 
 
Nomination Procedures: 
Nominees must be a board member or management employee of the SDRMA Member, and 
the SDRMA Member must be an active member agency of both SDRMA's Property/Liability 
and Workers' Compensation Programs.  
 
Candidates must be nominated by resolution or letter of their member agency's governing 
body and submit the required documents. The nomination filing deadline is Friday, April 
12, 2024.  
 
Interviews will be conducted by SDRMA’s Board of Directors on Wednesday, May 1, 2024, 
in Sacramento at SDRMA’s office.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item.  
  
 


	Agenda 2024-Feb 21
	Item 4a - 2024-1-17 Minutes
	Item 4b & 4c- Jan Financials
	Online_Payment_Spreadsheet Jan
	AP Check REg
	Dec IS
	Dec BS
	Dec Status_Of_Capital_Improvement_Projects (2)

	Item 5 - Water & District Status
	Item 5a - All Charts
	Item 6 - Service Line 64 Calle Vista del Monte
	Item 6a - Invoice-64 Calle Vista del Monte_Gruber EST0036-3
	Marisa and Jason Gruber
	To
	Ventura River Water District


	Item 7 - Consulting Agreement with NextGen
	Item 7a - 240209 Redlined Agreement 2-2-24
	Item 7b - Consulting Agreement - Professional Services 1-11-24 redline-SGN Rev 1.31.2024
	Item 8 - Mid Year Budget Review
	Item 9 - Approval to Advertise for Accounting Services2
	Item 9a - RFP - Accounting Services
	Item 10 - Update to Prioritization of 2023 Water Projects
	Item 11 - WaterSMART Application
	Item 11 - WaterSMART Application--SGN Rev
	Item 11a - Resolution 2024-xxx - WaterSMART--SGN Rev
	Item 12 - Goals Update
	Item 12a - Goals 23-24
	Item 13 - GM Review_Staff Survey
	Item 13a - GM Review_Staff Survey Questions V3
	Item 15 - CSDA and SDRMA Board Vacancies



